=

Certificate of Need Program
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT APPLICATION
Applicant’s Completeness Checklist and Table of Contents

Pr{)ject Name: SSM Heaith St Mary's - St Lauls CCL Replacament Pl‘oject No: 6178 HT

Project Description: Replaciag 15 year old cath lab sysiem. Original Unil was project #4234

Done Page  NfA Descrintion

Divider 1, Application Summary:

_m2 1, Applicant Identification and Certification {Form MO 580-1861}
__pg3 2. Representative Registration (From MO 580-1869)
__pg4 3. Proposed Project Budget (Form MO 580-1863) and detail sheet with documentation of costs.

Divider II. Proposal Description:

_ P8 _ 1. Provide a camplete detailed project description, CON project number of the existing equipment (if prev. CON
approved), and include the type/brand of both the existing equipment and the replacement equipment.

_ 872 9. Provide a listing with itemized costs of the medical equipment to be acquired and bid quotes.

__Pab 3, Provide a timeline of events for the project, from CON issuance through project completion.

Divider I Service Specific Criteria and Standards:

_ pazs 1. Describe the financial rationale for the propesed replacement equipment.
_ bg2s 2. Document if the existing equipment has exceeded its useful life.
2 3. Describe the effect the replacement unit would have on quality of care.
__pa28 4, Document if the existing equipment is in constant need of repair.

__ pa2s __ 5. Document if the lease on the current unit has expired.

__pg2s8 6. Describe the technological advances provided by the new unit.

_pg2s 7. Describe how patient satisfaction would be improved.

__Pgz8 8. Describe how patient outcomes would be improved.

ka2 ___ - 9, Describe what impact the new unit would have on utilization,

___Pa? 10, Describe any new capabilities that the new unit would provide.

__Pg28 _ 11, By what percent will this replacement increase patient charges.

{If replacement equipment was not previously approved, also complete Divider IV below.)

Divider IV. Financial Feasibility Review Criteria and Standards:

__mmaret 1, Document that sufficient financing is available by providing a letter from a financial institution or an
auditor's statement indicating that sufficient funds are available.

__pa3l® 2. Provide Service-Specific Revenues and Expenses {Form MO 580-1865) projected through three (3) FULL
years heyond praject completion.

__padiss 3, Document how patient charges are derived.

3536 4. Document responsiveness to the needs of the medically indigent.

MO 580-2506 {11/22)
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Certificate of Need Program

APPLICANT IDENTIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION

The information provided must malch the Letter of Intent for this project, without exception,
SR

1. Pl‘Ojﬂ ct Location (Atach additional pages as necessary 1o identify mulliple project sttes)

Title of Proposed Project j Project Number
SSM Health St. Mary's - St. Louls CCL Replacement #6179 HT
Froject Address {Sireel/ City/ State/ Zip Cotle) County

6420 Clayton Rd., Si. Louis, MO 63117 St. Louis Gity

2, Applicant Identification  fennation must ugree with previously submitfed Lelter of Jitent.}

List All Ownet(s)! (List corporate entity) Address (Street fCity / State/Zip Code) Telephone Number
SSM Health St. Louls 42800 Corporate Hill, 8t, Louls, MO 63431 314-980-2000

Owner/Oparator S5M Health 8L Mary's - 8, Louls 3420 Giaylon Rd., St Louls, MO 83117 314-766-8000
{List enfily to ba
Ydst All Operator(s): licensed or certifiod,) Address (Street/ City/Slate/Zip Code) Telephone Number
SS8M Haalth St Louls 12800 Corporale Hill, St. Louls, MO 63131 314-989-2000
Owner/Oparator SSM Health 5. Mary's - St. Louls 6420 Clayton Rd., St. Louis, MO 83117 314-7608-8000

3. Ownership (Check applicable category)

Nonprofit Corporation ) Individual £} City [l District

(] Partnership (0 Corporation (1 County [l Other _

4, Certification

11, submitting this project application, the applicant understands that;

(A) The review will be made as to the communiiy need for the proposed beds or equipment in this
application;

(B) In detertmining community need, the Missouri Health Facilities Review Commiittee {Committee) will
consider all similar beds or equipment within the service area;

(C) T'he issuance of a Certificate of Need (CON) by the Committes depends on conformance with its Rules
and CON statute;

(D} A CON shall be subject to forfeiture for failure to incur an expenditare on any approved project six (6)
months after the date of issuance, unless obligated or extended by the Committee for an additional six
{6) months:

(E) Notification will be provided to the CON Program staff if and when the project is abandoned; and

() A CON,if issued, may not be transferred, relocated, or modified except with the consent of the
Comimittee.

We certify the information and date in this application as accurate to the best of our knowledge and beliel by our
representative’s signature below:

B, Authorized Contact Person jaftacha Gentact Person Correcilon Form if different from the Letter af Ient.)

Hame of Condact Person Title -
Jill Mowry Dlr Stealegy

Telephone Nurmber Fax Number E-malt Addeess

636-498-2620 JiLmowry@ssmbeaith.conm

Slgnjture of Conkact Person Date of Slgnalure

| ja-18-aY

MG SEO\ 861 {03713}
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Certificate of Need Program

REPRESENTATIVE REGISTRATION

(A registration form must be completed for each project presenter,)

Project Mame Humber

SSM Health St. Mary's - St. Louls CCL Repiacemant #6179 HT

(Please type or print legibiy.)

Name of Beproseniative Tiiie

JiIt Mowry Dir Strategy
Finn/Corpomtlon/Assoctation of Represenlalive {may be different Trom belaw, 8., Jow flrm, consultant, olher] Telephone Nutmbey
S5M Health 636-496-2520

Address [Street/Clly/Siate/Zip Code}

12800 Corporate Hill, 8, Louis, MO 683131

Who's interests are being represented?
(If more than one, submit a separate Representative Registration Form Jor each.)

Hame of Inalviduak] Agency/ Corporation/Qrganizailon Dolng Represented Telcphone Number

3SM Health St. Mary's - St. Louls 314-768-8000

Address (Street/Cly /State/2ip Crde)

6420 Clayton Rd., St. Louis, MO 63117

Check one, Doyow Relationship to Project:
4 support [J None
[J Oppose M Employee
1 Neutral [J Legal Counsel
[0 Consultant
[} Lobbyist
Other Information: [] oOther {explain):

—

[ attest that to the best of my belief and knowledge the testimony aund information presented by
me is truthful, represents factual information, and is in compliance with §197.326.1 RSMo
which says: Any person who is paid either as peait of his normal employment ot as a lobbyist to
support ar oppose any project before the health facllities review comnitiee shall register as a
lobbyist pursuant to chapter 105 RSMo, and shall also register with the staff of the health
facllities review committee for every project in which stch person has ar interest and indicate
whether such person supports or opposes the named projeci, The registration shall also include
the names and addresses of any person, firm, corporation, or association that the person
registering represents in relation to the named project, Any person violating the provistons of this
subsection shall be subject to the penalties specified in § 105,478, RSMo.

Dale

Z&Jﬁ Mowny 121224

MO 580-36869 (1174)
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Certificate of Need Program

PROPOSED PROJECT BUDGET

Description Dollars
COSTS:* (Fill in every line, even if the amount is “$0”.)
New Construction Costs ***
2. Renovation Costs *** $1,217,930
3. Subtotal Construction Costs (#1 plus #2} $1,217,930
4. Architectural/Engineering Fees $115,000
5. Other Equipment (not in construction contract) $451,900
6. Major Medical Equipment $1,050,576
7. Land Acquisition Costs ***
8. Consultants’ Fees/Legal Fees *RE
9. Interest During Construction (net of interest earned) ***
10. Other Costs *** $470,897
$2.088,373

11. Subtotal Non-Construction Costs (sum of #4 through #10
12. Total Project Development Costs (#3 plus #11)

FINANCING:
13. Unrestricted Funds
14, Bonds
15. Loans
16. Other Methods (specify}

17. Total Project Financing (sum of #13 through #16)

$3,306,303

$3,306,303

$3,308,303

18. New Construction Total Square Footage
19. New Construction Costs Per Square Foot #***¥
20. Renovated Space Total Square Footage

21. Renovated Space Costs Per Square Foot *hx#*

+  Attach additional page(s) detailing how each line item was determined, ir
assumptions used, Provide documentation of all major cosis.

+* These amounts should be the same.

weluding all methods and

w Capitalizable items fo be recognized as capital expenditures after project completion.

ss4+ Inelude as Other Costs the following: other costs of financing; the value of existing lands, buildings and
equipment not previously used for health care services, such as a renovated house conwerted to residential
care, determined by original cost, fair market value, or appraised value; or the fair market value of any

leased equipment or building, or the cost of beds to be purchased.
wat+ Dipide new construction costs by total new conshruction square footage.

seat Divide renovation costs by total renovation square footage.

WO 580.1863 (02/13}
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Divider |l Proposal Descriptions - St. Mary’s Hospital Cath Lab Replacement 2025

1. Provide a complete detailed project description, CON project number of the existing equipment (if previously
CON approved) and include the type/brand of both the existing equipment and the replacement equipment.

e Previous CON Project #: 4234 HT in 8/2008

e Current CON project number is #6179 HT

e Existing Equipment: Cath lab single plane GE Medical Systems innova 3100
e Replacement Equipment: Siemens Artis lcono ceiling Cardiology

s SSM St. Mary's Hospital in Maryland Heights, MO is planning to replace its existing Single plane GE Medical
System Innova 3100 to a new Siemens Artis Icone Ceiling Cardiology

2. Provide a listing with itemized costs of the medical equipment to be acquired and bid quotes.
- EnSite X EP System - $292,900
. ViewMate Multi Ultrasound System - $124,000
- Cath lab Siemens Artis icono ceiling - $1,050,576
- See pages 7-26 for quotes.

3. Provide a timeline of events for the project, from CON issuance through project completion,

Submit CON LOI for State  11/27/24
Submit Application for CON. 1/10/25
Project Planning Start. 2/1/25
Design Start.  2/15

CON Baliot Decision. 2/21/25
Design Complete. 4/15/25

File for Permits. 5/15/25
Construction Start, 6/15/25
Construction End.  9/15/25
Equipment Install. 9/20/25

Go live. 10/20/25
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EXHIBIT A

Product Deseription and Pricing

Service Coverage: Includes initial one year manufacturer’s warranty

r Product Description Order | Qty. | List | Customer
No. Price Price
ViewMate™ Multi Ultvasound System VMM~ | 1 $153,000 | $100,000
ICE-01
The ViewMate™ Multi Ulirasound System is a fully featured imaging platform,
Optiniized for a 64-element phased array intra-cardiac echo (ICE} visualization,
the system is compatible with the ViewFlex™ family of ICE catheters. Equipped
with ZONE Sonography® Technology (ZST), the ViewMate™ Mulii Ultrasound
System uses a software-driven approach io acoustic data acquisition and image
formation that breaks the barriers of conventional ultrasound imaging.
Software:
o Modes: 2D/B, M, Color Doppler (CD), Power Doppler, Pulse Wave
{PW), Continuous Wave {CW), AUX CW
o iTouch - instantly equalizes iinage gain and optimized sound speed
compensation
o Cardiac calculations packages
o Configurable cybersecurity options
o DICOM networking — includes Verify, Stove, Print, and Basic Modality
Worldist Query service classes
Hardware:
o 23.5 color, high resolution LCD display mounted on articulating arm
o 15.6” touchscreen with intuitive interactions
o OLED display for customizable mode menus
o Catheter Interface Module for ICE and hedrail mounting bracket
o Rechargeable battery allows up to 2 hours of operation without
plugging inte AC power
o Connect up to 4 transducers simultaneously
o  Multifunction USB ports, integrated Wireless
o 1'TB Hard Drive Storage
o HDMI/VGA digital video output
o Integrated wireless connectivity
Accessories:
o Customized, durable baskets to carry supplies
o 3-Lead ECG connection
o Operator's manual and quick veference guide
Service Coverage: Includes initial one year manufacturer’s warranty
SP5-1s Phased Transducer SP518 |1 $22,000 | $13,000
Phased Array Transducer, SP5-18 Transducer is a single crystal design (15—-4.5
MHz). Intended applications: Adult Abdominal, Adult Cardiac, Adult Cranial,
Pediatric and Cardiac,
Service Coverage: Includes initial one year manufacturer's warranty
1.9-3s Linear Transducer Lo-38 1 $19,000 | $11,000
Linear Array Transducer, Lg-38 Transducer (2.5 ~ 6.0 MHz). Intended
applications: Abdominal, Pediatric, Small Organ, Musculoskeletal, Vascular and
Nerve,

L

Total | $124,000

Brittany Willeford
Case No. 00521907
Document No.: 00106183.0
08/22/24
Confidential
Page b

Abhott
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EXHIBIT A

pProduct Description and Pricing

The EnSite™ X EP System is a catheter navigation and mapping system
capable of displaying the 3-dimensional (3-D) position of conventional and
Sensor-Enabled™ electrophysiology catheters, as well as displaying cardiac
electrical activity as waveform traces and as dynamic 8-D isopotential maps of
the cardiac chamber, The contoured surfaces of these 3-D maps are based on
the anatomy of the patient’s own cavdiac chamber. Various software expansion
modules and warranties are available.

Indications for Use
o The EnSite™ X EP System is a suggested diagnostic tool in patients
for whom electrophysiology studies have Deen indicated.
o 'The EnSite™ X EP System provides information about the electrical
activity of the heart and displays catheter Jocation during
conventional electrophysiological (EP) procedures.

Clinical Benefit
o The intended clinical benefit is to provide diagnostic information to
the physician to aid in the treatment of arrhythmias.

EnSite™ X Amplifier

o The EnSite™ X EP System Amplifier accepts signals from EnSite
X SurfaceLink Modute, EnSite X 20 pin and 80 pin Catheter Input
Modules, the EnSite™ X Field Frame, and four (4) Patient Reference
Sensors. The devices accept signals from catheters and electrodes
attached to the patient and pass these signals to the EnSite™ X
Amplifier. The EnSite™ X Amplifier converts these signals to a digital
format and sends them to the DWS for processing and display.

o EnSite™ X EP System Field Frame, The Field Frame generates
the magnetic tracking field during an EnSite™ X EP System
procedure,

o FEnSite™ X EP System SurfaceLink™ Module. Connects the
EnSite™ X surface electrodes, system reference su rface electrode, and
ECE electrodes 1o the EnSite™ X Amplifier. :

o EnSite™ X EP System Catheter Input Modules. 2o pin and 8o
pin modules allow for conmection of siandard diagnostic catheters fo
the EnSite™ X Amplifier.

o Four (4) Ensite™ X EP System Patient Reference Sensors,
one anterior (PRS-A) and three posterior (PRS-P) sensors with
cables.

o FEnSite™ X EP System ECG cable, Connects standard ECG
electrodes to the EnSite™ X Amplifier.

o Medical Grade Isolation Transformer. When using the
Amplifier Cart, the system components connected to line power
through the isolation transformes. Only components on the Amplifier
Cart should be connected to this isolation transformenr.

EnSite™ X Display Workstation (DWS)
The DWS consists of the workstation {computer), monitors, medical grade
isolation transformer, and optional printer:

o EnSite™ X EP System Workstation. The workstation contains
the system software displaying data from the EnSite™ X Amplifier.
Attached to the workstation are a keyboard and mouse for user input.

L o Monitors. Monitors are used to display patient information, One

Product Description Order | Qty.| List | Customer
No. Price Price
EnSite™ X EP System ENSITE 1 $400,000 $175,000
X-5Y8

Brittany Willeford
Case No, 00521884
Document No,: 00i06177.0
08/22/24
Confidential
Page 7
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Tomitor is placed near the workstation and keyboard for system
operation.

o Medical Grade Isolation Transformer. AR system components
on the DWS cart are connected to line power through the isolation
transformer, Only components of the DW3 should be connected to
this isolation transformer.

EnSite™ VoXel Flex Mode
EnSite™ VoXel Flex Mode is a feature allowing users to switch between EnSite
NavX™ and EnSite™ VoXel Modes during a study.

This feature is compatible with EnSite™ X EP System software version 3.0 or
later,

TactiFlex™ Ablation Catheter, Sensor Enabled™ Software
TactiFlex™ Ablation Cathetey, Sensor Enabled™ is a feature that introduces
two new EnSite™ EP Sysiem software features:

o The Force Direction Indicator feature displays an arrow near the tip
of the TactiFlex™ Ablation Catheter, Sensor Enabied™ representing
three-dimensional direction of force.

o The Force Number Refresh Rate setting changes the number of times
the Force Number value is updated per second, This feature will be
available for ail EnSite™ X EP System Contact Force-compatible
catheters,

o The following devices are required to use Tactiflex™ Ablation
Catheter, Sensor Enabled™ Software and are sold separately:
TacliFlex™ Ablation Catheter, Sensor Enabled™ (meodel A-TFSE-D, ,
A-TFSE-DD, A-TFSE-DF, A-TFSE-F, A-TESE-FJ, A-TFSE-J,
A-TFSE-JJ, A-THSE-FI)

TactiSys™ Quartz Equipment (PN-004 400)
Compatible ablation generator

EnSite™ LiveView Dynamic Display
FnSite™ LiveView Dynamic Display is a feature allowing mapping data to be
visualized in real time during an EnSite™ X EP System study.
o The following devices are required to use Engite™ LiveView Dynamic
Display and are sold separately:
Advisor™ HD Grid Mapping Catheler, Sensor Enabled™ Software
Entitement Xit (model H702519)
Advisor™ HD Grid Mapping Catheter, Sensor Enabled™ (modei D-
AVHD-DF16)

System contains Instructions for Use (IFU).
Service Coverage: Includes initial one-year manufacturer's warranty

SIM Connect™ Remote Access for real time technical support through a
secure broadband cennection.

TactiSys™ TactiFlex™ Radiofrequency Cable
A noi-sterile, reusable cable (model TSQ-RF-TFSE-CBL) that is necessary when
using TactiFlex™ Ablation Catheter, Sensor Enabled™ .

TacliSys™ Quartz Equipment Radiofrequency Cable — for use with TactiCath SE™
and the Ampere™ RF Generator (cable PN-004 515) will need to be purchased
separately.

Advanced Mapping Software License

Advanced Mapping Software License is a set of mapping features that
introduces the following new functionality:

. EnSite™ OT Near Field Detection Algorithm — A new detection
method placing the detection time at the peak frequency (sharpest
point) of the signal,

ENSITE-
ANM-2.0

$30,000

$20,000

Brittany Willeford
Case No., 00521884
Document No.: 00106177.0
0B/22/04
Confidential
Page 8

Abbott
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® Peak Frequency maps — A new map type based on the peak
frequency (sharpness) of the map point signal,

J Emphasis maps — A new map visualization tool where areas of
interest are emphasized on the map by darkening arveas on the map
that do not meet user-defined criteria.

Included EnSite™ OT license features:

. Omnipolar waveforms — A calculated waveform of the optimal bipole
{(maximum voltage) independent of catheter orientation, Qmnipolar
saveforms are calculated from the bipoles of triangular three-
clectrode groupings, or cliques, on the Advisor™ HD Grid Mapping
Catheler, Sensor Enabled™,

. Activation Vectors — A mapping feature where arrows representing
activation direction, calculated from EnSite™ OT waveforms, are
overlaid on the map.

Ineluded EnSite™ X EP System Wave Speed license feature:

Wave Speed maps — A new map type showing the apparent speed at which the
depolarization wave travel through the cardiac tissue.

‘AutoMark Distance Software License

The EnSite™ X EP System AutoMark Distance software license introduces a
new tool to display the measured distance in the model/map display between:
«  Anablation catheter and an AutoMark or manual lesion marker.

o Two or more AutoMarks or manual lesion markers

"This feature is compatible with EnSite™ X EP System software version 3.0 of
later.

ENSITE-
AMD-01

$20,000

$10,000

Averaged Impedance Drop Software License

The EnSite™ X TP System Averaged Impedance Drop Software License
introduces averaged radiofrequency (RF) impedance data. Averaged
impedance data can be visualized as a waveform or numeric value in the
software and is used in the caleulation of two AutoMark metrics:

+  Averaged impedance Drop — The difference between the averaged
impedance at the start of a session and the global minimum averaged
impedance for the session.

s Averaged Impedance Drop (%) — The percentage difference between
the averaged impedance at the start of a session and the global
minimum averaged impedance for the session.

Averaged impedance data is created by applying a one-second moving average
to un-averaged impedance data received from the Ampere™ Generator.
Averaged impedance data can be viewed in real-time or when reviewing a
recorded RE session,

This feature is compatible with EnSite™ X EP System goftware version 3.0 o
later.

ENSITE-~
IMP-01

$30,000

$20,000

Puised Field Ablation (PEA) Catheter Visualization Software License

The Engite™ X EP System PFA Catheter Visualization Software License
introduces visualization of a third party PFA catheter, providing a visual
rendering of the catheter onto the system.

NOTE: This featuye wilt only be usable when an appropriate third party PFA
catheter is connected and can be visualized in the following configurations:
| e Flower

ENSITE-
FWV-01

$35,000

$25,000

Brittany Willeford
Case No, 00521884
Document No.: 00106177.0
o8/22/24
Confidential
Page ¢

Abhott
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s  Basket

This feature is compatible with EnSite™ X EP System software version 3.0.2 or
lJater,

EnSite™ Contact Force Module

Contains:
e EnSite™ Contact Force Modulevi.o
+  TacliSys™ Quartz

Allows contaet force data to be viewed on the EnSite Velocily Cardiac Mapping
System. Key benefils include an intaitive display of contact force data, gasler
set-up and an enhanced workilow.

o Reguires EnSite Velocity Systerm Display Workstation 5 (DWSs} or
higher.

o Requires EnSite Precision Mapping Module part number H7co0386t0
already be installed.

Service Coverage: Includes initial one year manufacturer’s warranty

CIK3000

$55,000

$20,000

Ampere™ Generator Kit

Increased efficiency and control
+  Designed for improved efficiency and decreased noise interference
«  User controlled Power or Temperature modes
«  New Power Control mode for:
o  Safire™ BLU™ Duo Ablation Catheters
o Therapy™ Cool Path™ Duo Ablation Catheters
o Future irrjgated ablation catheters
Easy to use standard options
«  Monitor real-time temperature and impedance data on the color LCD
screen
o Power, temperature, impedance and duration push-button controls
e Increased lab efficiency through user presets
«  Easy bedside physician control with included Footswitch

Solutions designed to reduce risk
. Select maximum temperature for aulomatic modulation of power
with the TempGuard mode
e Manage procedural needs through user-configured variable Power
Ramp-Up
»  Control irrigation flow rates with the Auto Flow feature
+ TEnhanced control of RF delivery with Automatic RF shutoff
parameters
o For example, auto-shut off is adjustable for impedance that
changes by more than 10 ohms over 5 seconds

Seamless integration for the EP Lab
«  Ampere RF generator integrates with our EnSite™ Velacity™ System,
WorkMate™ Claris™ System, Cool Point™ Irrigation Pump and all
other Abbott Laboratories Inc., standard and irdgated ablation
catheters. The Ampere software is also upgradable via USB
connection.
Includes generator and footswiteh with 2,5 m cable.

Specifications
« RFOutput Power: 10100 W adjustable in steps of 1'W
Impedance Range: Measures 50 £ to 300 () in steps of1 Q)

L
+  Target Temperature: 15° Cto80°C adjustable in steps 0f1° C
+ RF Delivery Time: 11099y seconds adjustable in steps of 1 second

o

Hy00494

$30,000

$12,000

Brittany Willeford
Case No. 00521884
Document No.: 00106177.0
08/22/24
Confidengial
Page 10

Abbott
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»  Control Modes: Temperature; Power

+  Energy Delivery Modes: Independent; Sequential; Simultaneous

s Operating Parameters: Values are digitally displayed on the
Ampere™ Generator front panel

e  Generator Dimensions: 266.7mm H x 360.68mm W x 363.22mm D
(105" Hx 14.2" Wx14.3” D)

«  Cenerator Weight: 9.98 kg{22.0bs)

+  Supply Voltage: 100-240 VAC, 50/60 Hz

» Safety Class: ClassT; Type CF according to IEC 60601-1

Sexvice Coverage: Includes initial one year manufacturer’s warranty

Ampere™ Remote Control (includes 15m fiber cord) H700490 $10,000 $5,000
Cool Point Irrigation Pump 89003 $15,000 $5,000
o Cool Point Trrigation Pump Includes: Pump, power cord, pole clamp,
1779 communications (connecting) cable, tubing set (1 each) and
operator’s manual. Communication cable for the Cool Point Irrigation
Pump {included with pump). Cool Point Tubing Set (sold
individually).
Service Coverage: Includes initial one year manufacturer’s warranty
Total | $292,500

Brittany Willeford
Case No. 00521884
Document No.: 00106177.0
a8/22/24
Confidential
Page 11
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SIEMENS .-,
Healthineers *°
Siemens Medical Solutions USA, inc. SIEMENS REPRESENTATIVE
40 Liberty Boulevard, Malvern, PA 19355 Gregory Thudium - +1 (314} 604-8452
gregory.thudium@siemens—heaithineers.com
PRELIMINARY PROPOSAL
Customer Number: 0000010388 Date: 02/05/2024

SSM HEALTH ST MARYS HOSPITAL
6420 CLAYTON RD
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63117

Siemens Medical Solutions USA, Inc. is pleased to submit the following quotation for the products and services
described herein at the stated prices and terms, subject to your acceptance of the terms and conditions on the face
and back hereof, and on any attachment hereto.

Table of Contents Page
ARTIS icono ceiling Cardiology (Quote Nr. CPQ-040405 REV. 0)..oiiirirrceeeiiimmiriersissisiass e s 2
OPTIONS for ARTIS icono ceiling Cardiology (Quote Nr. CPQ-649405 Rev. D) overeeeere s 10

Contract Total: $ 1,050,576 ,
(fotal does not include any Optional or Alternate components which may be selected)

Proposal vafid until 0312112024

Created: 02/05/2024 21:26:13 Siemens Medical Solutions USA, Inc. Confidential Page 1 of 14
P-CPQ-949405-0-2

13
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SIEMENS .-,
ealthineers *-°

Siemens Medical Solutions USA, Inc. SIEMENS REPRESENTATIVE
40 Liberty Boulevard, Malvern, PA 19355 Gregory Thudium - +1 (314) 604-8452

gregory.thudium@siemens—healthineers.com

PRELIMINARY PROPOSAL

Quote Nr:

Terms of Payment:

CPQ-949405 Rev. 0

Note in order Text Terms of payment
Free On Board: Destination

Purchasing Agreement: IDN - SSM HEALTH PARTNERSHIF

IDN - SSM HEALTH PARTNERSHIP terms and conditions
apply to Quote Nr CPQ-949405

Customer certifies, and Siemens relies upon such
certification, that ; (a) VIZIENT CARD-VASC - XR0O705 is the
sole GPO for the purchases described in this Quotation, and
(b) the person signing this Quotation is fully authorized
under the Customer's policies to choose and indicate for
Customer such appropriate GPO.

ARTIS icono ceiling Cardiology

All items listed below are included for this system:

Qty Part No.
1 14465276
1 14465321
1 14455542
1 14465043

Created: 02/05/2024 21:26:13
P-CP(-949405-0-2

Item Description

ARTIS icono ceiling Cardiology

ARTIS icono celling Cardiology adapts effortiessly to different users and cardiac
procedures, Teducing tralning times for new staff, streamlining workflows
significantly, and improving procedural cutcomes. This intuitive systemn offers
advanced 2D, 30 and multimodality support for a wicle variety of procedures, from
routine to more campiex treatment for corenary artery disease, structural heart
disease and arrythmias.

The ceiling mounted G-arm combines flexibility and speed for a smooth positioning
at any side of the patient without rotating the patient table.

OPTIQ is a new approach to image quality and dose, to visualize new materials and
smaller devices ciearly with low dose,

CaseFlows improve usability and standardization. For new and compiex procedures
this will help the cardiologist to focus on the procedure.

Omni Spin
ARTIS icono ceiling Omni Spin.

Lasel crosshairs

Laser cross for zen40HDR and as40HDR detector, integrated into the detector
housing for simplified patient positioning and for syngo Needle Guidance marking
preplanned puncture point and angle.

Imaging System

Image system computer for control of system operation and image acquisition.
Dual architecture

In order to provide highest lavel system availability, the imaging system consists of
two independent computer systems that manage centrat tasks such as real-time
image processing during fluoroscopy of acquisition as well as post-processing and
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PRELIMINARY PROPOSAL

jterm Description

networking functionality separately from one another. This ensures the best possible
system performance and availability.

Image storage capacity

100,000 images in 1k matrix with a size of 2 MB

25,000 images in 2k maltrix with a size of 8BMB

Live 2k imaging

Live 2k Imaging allows flucroscopy, digital acquisition, and digital subtraction
angiography as well as display and storage in 2k image matrix, for up to 1% fps.
The 2k image matrix allows an excellent spatial resolution. Thus, the image meets
highest expectations in angiography and fulfills all prerequisites for precise
diagnostics and safe interventions.

Automap
Automatic stand positioning depending on the selected reference image and
automatic reference Image selection depending on the stand positiening.

OPTIG with as40HDR GIGALIX

OPTIG image chain with the following tube, colimater, and flat detector
configuration:

as40HDR detector and GIGALIX fube

Tie as40HDR flat detector is optimized for the requirements of radiology.

The GIGALIX X-ray tube concentrates high pulse power on small, square-shaped
focal spots (fat emitter technology for all focal spots). This provides unprecedented
image quality for confidence in challenging situations.

Add. Display with Live image
24" TET display for Live Image dispiay.

Including 36m cable with DVI-D connection and transceiver for display installation
on the rear of the DCS in combination with the Large Display.

Multimodality Viewing

Supperts the connection of external video sources such as Sensisfrecording
systems, PACS, HISIRLS, Ultrasound, ECG, VUS, OCT, external video, endoscape,
mapping systems, and their visualization on the exarm room dispiay. Adapted to the
local needs and depending on the availability of ihe cockpit option up to 24 external
sources can be connected.

Large Display (rail mount)

Large color flai screen display (including cables) for the examination room, with a
panel diagonat of 55", This large display version provides an excellent clinical image
quality due to its new IPS panel technology.

The Large display is fixed on a ceiling-mounted, longitudinally movable, rotatable,
and height-adjustable display hoider in the examination room.

Large Display diagn. protection
55" laminated glass protective screen for the monitor panel.

Large control room display
Large centrof room display

- Panel: 31.5"

- Resolution 3840 x 2160

- Pixel size: 0.181 x 0,181 mm

- Typicai conirast: max. 1000 : 1

Created: 02/05/2024 21:26:13 Siemens Medical Solutlons USA, Inc. Confidentiai Page 3 of 14
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ltem Description

- Max. luminance 700 cd/im2

- Caliprated luminance: 400 cd/m2

- Display area (diagonai). 800 mm

- Dimensions without stand: (W x Hx 1) 761 x 471 x 90 mm

ARTIS multi-tilt table

ARTIS multi-tilt table ensures optimal patient positioning regardless of the procedure
and patient size. With an unprecedented levet of material integrity, it is suitable for
aven the heaviest of patlents.

_ Maximum table load: 440 kg (970 lbs.) consisting of 280 kg {617 Ibs.) for the
patient, 100 kg {220 ibs.) for accessories, plus 60 kg (132 lbs.) for CPR

- Allows tilting in +15°/-20° and a +-15° cradie

- The easy-floal tabletep permnits hassle-free positioning of the tabletop regardless of
patient weight, mounted jower-body radiation protection and tableside modules

- Small table base allows upright and comfortable standing, close to the patient.
_'The Siemens unigque IseTik functionality keeps the C-arm projection during
Trendelenburg tilting.

- Ball baaring mounted slidable accessory ralls on both sides for easy positicning of
control modules and accessories.

Nole:

It is mandatery to provide UPS back up with this table option in order to compiy with
{EC 60601-2-43 CL. 201.16.101. Reason: In the event of power failure a neutral
iable position suitable for CPR must be reachabie within 15 seconds. A suitable
UPS from Siemens as required must be included in your order unless an existing f
planned UPS provision for your installation site wili satisfy the requirement.

Tabletop - harrow

Narrow-shaped carbon fiber patient positianing tablatop with head-end recess. !deal
for cardiclogical and netiro-interventional applications. Tabletop tapered in the
{horax area for maximum freedom of C-arm angulation.

Maximum patient weight: 280 kg / 617.3 lbs.

Welght: 13 kg / 28.7 Ibs.

Length: 2287 + 1 mm /0.1 £ 0.04"

Width head-end: 228 £ 0,5 mm / 9.0"+0.02"

\Width middle body: 480 £ 0.8 mm/ 18.9" £ 0.03"

Width lower body: 525 £ 0.5 mm / 20.7" £ 0.02"

intended only for use with ARTIS tables.

Mattress - thick

Matching, special-foam mattress, 7 cm, inch. a latex-free cover.

This visce-elastic comfort mattress reacis o temperature and has the speciai
property of adapting lo the individual body shape under the influence of body weight
and heat.

Mattress thickness: 70+ 5 mm / 2.8" £ ¢.2"

Oper. contr. ARTIS table

For an ideal workflow, fuli system operation can be performed directly at the table
side.

This includes complete system operation through modular centrol elements for
contralling C-arm movements, patient table, and collimator.

The Illuminatee controls and touch disptay are easy to use — even when covered
with drapes for sterile operation.

Pitot module

The pilot module provides comfortable and ergonomic operation of the system. 1t
allows the control of system and table movements, imaging parameters, the

Siemens Medical Solutions USA, Inc. Confidential
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PRELIMINARY PROPOSAL

tem Description

selection of examination protocols, image acquisition and evaluation and many
other functions. The touch screen can be configured to meet individua! clinical
requirements.

The Touch2Move technology allows intultive activation of system movements.

Table conirol module fwith ARTIS muiti-tilt {able)

The table operating module with panning knob for servo-assisted table movement
enables virtually force-free movement of the patient regardiess of table load and
table inclination,

Table control module (with ARTIS standard table}

Tabie control module with panning knob for free-floating tabletop movement.
Collimator control madule

The Collimator control moduie for controliing of all collimator functions, such as
rectangular blade or wedge-shaped fillers.

Hand switch

Multi-functional hand switch for acquisition cantrol, switching acquisition frame rates
and/or step movements. (This switch might not be available In all countries.)

1st 4 pedal cable footswitch
Wired 4-pedal footswitch for rejease of fluoroscopy, acquisition, and tabletop brake
(with ARTIS table}, a3 well as configurable control function.

2nd 4 pedal wireless footswitch
Additional wireiess 4-pedal footswiich for release of fiuoroscopy, acquisition, and
tablatop brake (with ARTIS table), as well as configurable control function.

Cable clips ECG
Cable clips for securing the ECG cable to the patient tabletop.
liincludes 10 cable clips.

Intended onfy for use with Artis / ARTIS tables

Infusion hottle holder

This infusion bottle holder can be mounted at the accessory rail of the patient table.
[t holds up to 4 infusion botlles.

1t inciudes an infusicn bottle holder made of stalnless steel with 4 retaining rings.

intended only for use with Arlis/ARTIS tables.

Spacer Rail

This Is an accessory rail for attachment of tableside rail equipment {for use with an
extended lateral moving tableiop).

This accessory allows tableside mounted equipment, to be used on a fable featuring
extended lateral tabletop movement.

Rail accessories which would strike the table pedestal, are positioned outside of this
movement range.

Weight: 4.7 kg
Dimansicns; 85 cm (L) x 16 cm (W) x 4.4 cm {+)

Arm rest

Arm support used for the arm approach. Length: 1m (35.4"). Slides undermeath the
patient mattress and is held in position by the patient's weight.

Made of radiolucent carbon fiber material which is easy to clean. It includes two
additional suppori pads of two different heights {4 and 7 emj.

Length pad: 60 cm / 23.82"

Siemens Medical Solutions USA, Inc. Confidential Page 5 of 14
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Item Description

Width: © to 20 cm / 3.54" to 7.87"
Maximum weight: 5 kg (11.02 lbs.)
Weight (with pads): 2.1 kg / 4.63 los.

intended only for use with Artis / ARTIS tables.

Arm holder (pair)

The patient's arms can be comfortably placed along the body using these two arm
holders. They slide underneath the patient mattress and is held in position by the
patient’s weight.

It includes two pairs of arm holders of different fength (540 mm / 690 mm ~ 21.2"/
27.2"} and height (85 mm /115 mm - 2,35" / 4.53"), suitable both for thick and thin
patient matiresses.

tntended only for use with Artis / ARTIS tables.

Abdomen radiation prot. iR

This radiation shield protects the user from scattered radiation when standing at the
table side. It can be attached io the accessory rails either on the right or on the left
side of the patient positioning table.

It provides the user an additional accessary rail.

It inciudes a basic unit

{89 cm x 75 cm 1 35" x 28.5" (1 x h);

one lowar body radiation protection pivot swivel element

(48 cm x 75 om / 18.9" x 30.3" (| x h);

one flip down element 57 ¢m x 33¢m 122 4" % 12.99" {| x h}, and two clip-on units
(27 cm x 33 cm/ 10.6" x 12.98", and 27 em X 25 cm / 10.6" x 9.8")

with a lead of 0.5 mm /0.02" Pb.

The maximum load of the accessory rails is 20 kg {44.1 Ib).

Intended only for use with ARTIS tables. it provides a diclance of 7em to prevent the
collision with the table base in case of maximum penning.

Moveable upper body rad. protection

This radiafion shield protects the user from scattered radiation.

It includes a ceiting rail (4 m / 157.5"), a celling mounted and movable stand (80 cm
or 57 cm / 31.5" or 22.4"), a support am (84 om x 9% em/ 37" x 35.8") and an
acrylic glass.

The shield is made of acrylic glass with lead equivatent of 0.5 mm

{wx h: 81 cmx 76 om / 24" x 29.8"), which can pivot and rotate around a fixed point
with a range of 360 degrees.

The aperation range is {imited when used with Artis floor/biplane MN.

Max. weight: 18 kg / 39.68 lbs.

LED Exam Light
Ceiling-mounted, flaxibie positionable examination light with focusable light system.
It is fully integrated into the ceiling-instafied radiation protection mounting unit.

- Luminance:
Min 7C.000 Lux for 100 cm / 39.4" distance
- Working distance:
70 to 140 cm { 27.6" to 55.1"
- Focusable light field:
14 to 25 cm / 5.5" t0 9.8"
- Celor randering index Ra at 4500 Kelvin:
min. 95
- Color iemperature: 4,100+-280 Kelvin

Siemens Medical Solutions USA, Inc. Confidential Page 6 of 14
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ltem Description
- Total input power: Max, 24 VA

DSA acquisition mode

Digital subtraction angiography with up to 30 fis in 1k/16-bit matrix is available,
Automatic pixel-shift processing for most accurate subtracted image display during
Roadmap and DSA based on real time movement detection and compensation.

OPTIQ Readmap comes with enhanced image quality improvements at reduced
radiation dose, Several directly accessible features ease the workflow and save
time.

CLEARSstent Live - advanced package

The CLEARstent imaging function allows an improved display of fine stent
structures, Le., the grid of inflated stents. CLEARstent is a posi-processing stent
enhancement and may be used also on previously acquired images.

PAGS compatibility for review on any DICOM. The CLEARstent algorithm detects
two markers of a balloon or stent markers and aligns all frames from a series with a
minimum of 25 frames.

CLEARstant Live Is a real-time stent enhancement toot and provides a stabilized
view of the moving stent which is displayed on the Assist/Referance Monitor.

CLEARstent Live allows real-time verification of stent positioning while moving the
davice. This enables the physician to precisely position the stent in relation to the
anatomy of the heart and slents that already have been implanted. As a very naw
feature capability CLEARstent Live naw also offers the option to enhance the
region of interest (ROK). This is done by applying a special image processing in the
ROl and overlaying it onto the original scene while preserving the live image outside
of the enhanced area.

Additionally, the Last Image Hold (LIH) of the CSL scene may he stored as a

reference image. This might make an extra acquisition for getling a ref image {e.q.,
CLEARstent acquisition) obsolete.

Contains both CLEARstent Live license and CLEARstent license.

PERISTEPPING / PERIVISION
C-arm stepping for real-time bolus chasing.

Peripheral digital angiography with stepping and online subtraction display.

QVA Vascular analysis

Vessel analysis with determination of degree of stenosis, distance measuremant
and calibration.

With ARTIS icono SW version VE21 and higher QVA is available as the oplional
feature “QuantWeb QVA”, QuantWeb QVA is part of syngo application software and
can be deployed on the imaging system.

Intercom - Comfort
intercom system for communication between examination room and control room.
It includes:
- A microphone with & controi box for the
control room.
- A iicrophone with an adaptive acoustic
filter for hackground noise suppression
for the examination room.
- A footswiteh for conversation selection

Created: 02/05/2024 21:26:13 siemens Medical Solutions USA, inc. Confidential Page 7 of 14
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ltem Description
for the examination room.

OEM recording system interface
Cable connection to an OEM measurement system.

Holder for the ECG interface when using an OEM measurement system in the
examination room.

Recording, sterage, and display of an ECG lead, Displayed together with the image
information on a single monitor.

Operation in the control room
Preparation for system operation from controj roont.

Op. ctrl. - handswitch {C-Room}
Additional handswitch for radiation release and additional control functions.

lconoCeiling w multitilt table promotion

promational incentive 1o be used for configuratiens including the combination of an
ARTIS icono celfingmounted

imaging system in combination with the ARTIS multitiit table. No cther Promos can
be

combined. Must inciude one armore of the following: POS contract, Book & Bill,
Multi-unit purchase.

Required Part Numbers.

One of 14465276, 14465279, 14485277, 14465280, 14466278, 14465281, AND
14465045

Standard Rigging icono SP

Essential Edu Package (AXA)(IRCA)(CIBP)

This Essential Interventional Radiology & interventionai Cardiclogy educatian
package for celling-mounied and biplane systems includes: - Dedicated Siemens
Egucation Consultant: partnering with your Education Coordinator to create a
blended cursiculum adapted {o your facility’s individual needs. - Blended Learning
Curricuium: a combination of at least two {2) 28-hour onsite trainings, digitai
{(immersive, online & virtual) education, and instructor-led classroom elevated by
ASRT accreditation. Designed for your team fo maximize their confidence and
competence on your systerm. - On-site Customization: optimizing system hardware,
software, workfiow and opetating safety consistent with the cleared use of the
system. - Ongoing Educational Case Suppost: ability to request ongite case-support
for advanced procedures. The education will be delivered in four {4} phases: 1) Pre-
Installation: Customized Education Plan (GEP) tailored to your sites experience
level and case types. Training needs assessed on hardware and software options,
system positions, 2D/30 imaging, post-processing technigues and ongoing
procedure support. 2) Pre-Go Live: blend of virtual courses & instructor-led
classroom training. 3) Ge Live: minimum of two {2) weeks of ansite clinical
applications sessions, guiding staff members, relnforcing concepts and practices
acquired during pre-training. 4) Warranty iPost-Go Live: continuation of the CEP
delivery. Ongoing case support on advanced request and subject 1o availability.
Parties will mutually agree on deliverables and scheduling of the requested training.
This educational offering must be utilized within 12 months following insfall end
date. If this offering is not compteted within tne applicable time period, Siemens
cbligation to provide the training will expire without refund.

Siemens Medicat Solutions USA, inc. Confidential Page 8 of 14
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ltem Description

Eaton Powerware 9355 15 kVA UPS

Includes UPS, battery, maintenance bypass panel, and one year on-site parts and
jabor coverage (24x7) by Eaton Powerware. This UPS s recommended when
protection and uninterruptibie power is required for the Artis' C-arm and tabie.
Emergency fluoroscapy is not available with this UPS. If emergency fluoroscopy I8
required, the 9390 - 160 KVA UPS is recommended for the full system. One UPS
per lab.

Additional seismic brackets are required to make this systern OSHPD approved.

Black anti-fatigue mat 36x60

Black NewLife EcoPro anti-fatigue mat (36 inches x 60 inches), 3/4 inch
polyurethane foam, fluid and dirt resistant with anti-micorbial properties, matte
textured surface.

The ultimate employes benefit for workers who stand, are ergonomically designed
to provide the perfect balance of premium comfort and optimal support, Proprietary
Cellulon®Polyurethane Technolagy stands up 1o the tough demands of commercial
environments while providing lasting comfort that won't bottom out aver time. This
eca-friendly line of anti-fatigue mals Is certified by the National Floor Safetly Institute
for its high traction bettom surface.

Additional Rigging AXA

System Total $ 1,050,576
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OPTIONS on Quote Nr: CPQ-949405 Rev. 0

OPTIONS for ARTIS icono ceiling Cardiology

All items listed below are OPTIONS and will be included on this system ONLY if initialed: (See Detailed
Technical Specifications at end of Proposal.)

Qty PartNo. Item Description Extended Price
Optional parts
1 BART700PEDL  Mark 7 Arterion, Pedestal System +$ 29,016

The Arterign Mark 7 Pedestal contrast medium injectar can be positioned
anywhere at the patient positicning table on a moblle unit, for direct operation of all
functions in the examination room.

The injector system includes:

A mabile pedestal stand with electronics unit, a contrast medium heater and a
connection cable to the manual release.

A support am with injector head and a contraol lever for moving the injector head.
A user control console with large touch screen and corresponding additional
monitoring display an the Injector head.

Functions

Pressure limitation:

for 150 mi syringes 689 to 8273 kPa,
corresponds to 100 to 1200 psi. .

Flow rates for 150 ml syringes:

0.1 to 45 mls in increments of 0.1 mlfs

0.1 to 59.9 ml/min in increments of 0.1 mifmin
riseffall: 0 ta 8,9 & in increments of 0.1 seconds

Release delay for injection of radiation:
0to 99.9 s in increments of 0.1 s,

Adjustable volumne for 150 mil syringes:
1 mi to the max. syringe capacity In increments of 1 ml.

Fill rate:
Variable syringe filling speed 1-20mlfs.

Injection protocols:
Up o 40 injection protocois possible.

Parameters currently displayed on the touch screen display and on the head
display:

injection speed

Injection volume

Remaining volume

Injection duration

Applied pressure

Contrast medium heating:
Nominal 35°C (95°F)+-5°C (9°F)

Injection data memory
Up to 50 Injection data ftems stored

Created: 02/05/2024 21:26:13 Siemens Medical Selutions USA, Inc. Confidential Page 10 of 14
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Included in the scope of delivery
Injector standard configuration 150 m!
SIEMENS interface cable

Operator Manual

Service manual (English).

Power supply
200 V to 250 V; 50/60 Hz.

Arterion Pedestal Install

Optional parts

syngo Valve Guide Engine

Application seftware for raconstruction, post-processing and handling of 3D
information including specific applications to support valve imptantation or
replacement procedures like TAVITAVR,

The package includes the following functionalities:

- 3D high-contrast and CT-like soft-tissue imaging {syngo DynaCT and syngo
DynaCT Cardiac untriggered)

- syngo DynaCT Cardiac uses praven algorithms to perform 3D-reconstruction of

ventricles and vessels of the heart from projection images of a rotational
angiography.

- syngo DynaCT Cardiac uses proven algorithms to perform 3D-reconsiruction of
ventricies and vessels of the heart from prejection images of a rotationat
angiography

- 30 readmap for dynamic overlay of planning data and 3D voiumes on live
fluoroscopy workflow support for valve implantation or replacement
_In-room control for table-side operation of advanced applications

. 3D Wizard for expert step-by-step guidance in 3D acquilsition
- Parallel patlent processing capabilities

- Eusion functionality for integration of pre—iniewentional 3D datasets also from
other modalities into the Angio-room

. Marking of points of tines on the 3D geometry or MPRs and overlay of these
markings on live flucrascopy.

syngo Embolization Guidance
syngo Emboiization Guidance is an application for ptanning and performing
embglizations.

By manually marking a proximal start- and one of mulliple distal target vessel
point{s) in a syngo DynaCT, CTA or MRA dataset, the algorithm determines the
course of the vessel (tree) that connects the start with the target point(s).
Functionality for tumor segmeniation with automatic tumor velume computation is
available in addition.

Segmented structures can be overlaid with live 2D imaging for guidance during the
procedure.

In eombination with syngo DynaCT

{ 2200* acquisition) of CT dataset with intra-arterial injection, the easy one-click
syngo Embolization Guidance application automatically detects and highlights
tumor-feeding vessels for targeted embalization of the liver — supporting complete
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tumnor embolization, which is important for an effective and safe lrealment.

VOLCANO Cable Set plus

Cable set for operating the Vaolcano 51 ultrasound system incl. sbiz and s5iu
(CORE-System). it contains all cables for connecting the compaonents at the
patient table to the 51 imaging system in the control room.

This cable set will already be integrated into the Artis table in the factory.

With this item, a display is delivered additionally for the examination room if an
Artis Large Display was not ordered. If an Artis Large Display or Panoramic
Display is ordered, the configuration includes a connection kit instead of the 19"
display.

Also with this item comes the

Accessory spacer rail (Kenex Electro-Medical LTD.)

This Is an accessory rail fer attachment of {zbleside rail equipment {for use with an
extended lateral moving tabletop).

This accessory allows tableside mounted aquipment, to be used ona fable
featuring extended lateral tabletop movement. Rall accessories which would strike
fhe table pedestal, are positioned outside of this movement range.

LV Analysis

Analysis of the left ventricular function of the heart. With ARTIS jcono SYW version
VE21 and higher LVA [s avallable as the optional feature “QuantWeb LVA".
QuaniWeb LVA is part of syngo application sofiware and can be deployed on the
imaging system.
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Page 12 of 14
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SIEMENS .-,
Healthineers

siemens Medical Solutions USA, Inc. SIEMENS REPRESENTATIVE
40 Liberty Boulevard, Malvern, PA 19355 Gregory Thudium - +1 (314) 604-8452
gregory.thudium@siemens—hea1thineers.com

PRELIMINARY PROPOSAL

FINANCING: The equipment listed above may be financed through one of our financing partners. Ask us about our
fuil range of financial products that can be tailored to meet your business and cash flow requirements. For further
information, please contact your local Sales Representative.

Siemens Healthineers is pleased to submit this Prefiminary Pricing Proposal. A Preliminary Pricing Proposal is
provided for planning purposes only; it is not contractually binding. To receive a contractually binding proposal for
the Products listed above, inclusive of Terms, Conditions, and Warranty coverage, please contact your Siemens
Healthineers Sales Representative.

Siemens Healthineers

Gregory Thudium

+1 (314) 604-8452
gregory,thudium@siemens—healthineers.com

Created: 02/05/2024 21:26:13 Siemens Meadical Solutions USA, Inc. Confidential Page 13 of 14
P-CPQ-949405-0-2

25


jjorda0
Typewritten text
25


26


jjorda0
Typewritten text
26


Divider Il

Service Specific Criteria and Standards
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Divider 1l Service Specific Criteria and Standards - St. Mary’s Hospital Cath Lab Replacement 2025

1.

Describe the financial rationale for the proposed replacement equipment?

Through June 2024, SMSL Cardiac Cath Lab has improved the MBO/Case to $2,852 from $963 in 2023. Cardiac
EP and Cardiac Surgery have nearly doubled in MBO/Case to $7,829 and $7,526 respectively. Through October
2024, volumes for the month were a 20% unfavorable variance relating to the attrition of 2 proceduralists anda
gap in locums or replacement support. 2024 YTD volumes are 24 procedures favorable to budget, however,
pecause of the lack of interventional proceduralists, SMSL anticipates ending the year slightly below plan. For
2025, Cath Lab cases are planned at the rolling 12 months or 1218 OP visits, with anticipated increases ohce
providers are recruited, We have currently hired a new EP interventionalist starting January 2025.

Document if the existing equipment has exceeded its useful life.
Yes, the Cath lab has been identified as end of life and end of service by Phillips effective 12/31/20216. Parts will
no longer be available to fix any potential equipment malfunction from the lab.

Describe the effect the replacement unit would have on guality of care.

As SMSL continue to see growth in outpatient and overall procedural volume in the IR and CCL department, and
with the service leveling expectations for structural heart and ep cases actoss the region, SMSL must have the
ability to support access for elective and "community” level cardiac procedures across the academic platform.
Replacing CCL B with an Artis ICONO ceiling mounted device will provide capabilities for both iR and CCL
including right and left side heart ablations, implants, IR, and vascular procedures.

Document if the existing equipment is in constant need of repair.

Install date: 11/29/2007

Age: 16

Downtime hours by year: 782 total

ARR score: 4405

It is unsafe to use this Cath lab room for procedures. We are no longer able to use this equipment.

Document if the lease on the current unit has expired.
N/A - old unit was a capital purchase

Describe the technological advances provided by the new unit.

Significantly improved image quality leading to decreases in both radiation doses and IV contrast use during
procedures: more automated movements decrease potential injuries to staff and provider satisfaction and
confidence in diagnosis, iessoning error rates.

Describe how patient satisfaction would be improved,
Lower risk of kidney injury or injuries from high radiation doses

Describe how patient outcomes would be improved.

Decreased volume of kidney injuries; improved image guality can provide better diagnostic data allowing for
better decision-making for treatment plans, type of intervention needed, better sizing of equipment for patient
anatomy.
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9. Describe what impact the new unit would have on utilization.
Better imaging and more automation can improve efficiency, decrease the number of images needed, and
decrease case length leading to improvements in both provider and patient satisfaction,

10, Describe any new capabilities that the new unit would provide.
EP capabilities including right and left sided heart ablations

11. By what percent will this replacement increase patient charges?
There are ho net new codes or services that can be realized via this eqguipment over prior equipment. SSM does
not plan to add any overhead/additional charges due to the replacement of the unit. That said, with the new
technology we should gain efficiencies to allow for additional procedures in a day potential leading to
incrementat growth of patient charges.
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Divider IV
Einancial Feasibility Review

Criteria and Standards
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Divider IV Financial Feasibility Review, Criteria, and Standards - St. Mary's Hospital Cath Lab
Replacement 2025

1. Document that sufficient financing is available by providing a letter from a financial institution
or an auditot's statement indicating that sufficient funds are available.
See Page 37-91

9. Provide Service-Specific Revenues and Expenses (Form MO 580-1865) projected through three
(3) FULL years beyond project compietion.
See page 92

3. Document how patient charges are derived.

SM HEALTH PRICING POLICY

Hospital Pricing Policy
V1 September 2022; V2 August 2024

Approved By:
Version History:
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Scope:

All SSM-Hospital entities

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance for initiating and maintaining appropriate patient
charge pricing (rates/fees} for all SSM Health Hospitals. This applies for new charge requests throughout
the year and annual price review for all hospital inpatient and outpatient pricing. SSM Health will
maintain a uniform price schedule for all patients regardless of payor. This policy applies for all S5M-
Hospital entities for the establishment and maintenance of patient charges for the following service
categories:

« Room and bed

¢ Non-implant supplies

» implants and pacemakers

o lab

s Pharmacy drugs

e All other hospitai-based procedures

STRATEGIC PRICING REVIEW PROCESS:

The Strategic Pricing Team conducts an Annual Rate Review of each hospital-billing facility’'s fee
schedules for services, supplies, procedures, and room and bed charges taking into consideration the
following:

o Market data {prices charged by regional competitors, including type of hospital)
e Costto provide the service {including specific costs where available)

e Medicare and Medicaid fee schedules

e Managed care fee schedules and contract limitations

s Pricing at other SSM-facilities {if applicable)

Regional and/or SSM-entity Finance leadership teams will be presented proposed price summary data
for approval.

Mid-year CPT/HCPCS code additions and modifications will follow a similar process as the Annual Rate
Review, putting emphasis on the available local market comparison data and in coordination with
contracted fee schedules to maximize reimbursement.

It is the policy of SSM Health to consistently follow the standardized process to review charge pricing
within 48 hours of time of request and move the change to production in the most efficient manner

PRICING METHODOLOGY

SSM Health will employ a market-based hospital pricing strategy to align and remain competitive with
Hospital IP & OP services. Ancillary Procedures (Technical/Facility Component) charges will be computed
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ustng the focal peer competitor price data when available, The Medicare OPPS APC Wage index Adjusted
Payment Rate will be used as a benchmark comparison when available. The Contracting Analytics team
will provide input for charges affected by payor contract fee schedules,

PRICING CATEGORIES!

1. Hospital-based procedure charges are primarily derived from local peer competitor data and the
Medicare OPPS APC wage adjusted rate found at www.CMS.gov ; other considerations
mentioned above will be reviewed when necessary.

2. Supply and implant charges are astablished and maintained using a cost-plus mark-up formula
specific to each hospital-billing facility; any charges on a specific fee schedule may not retain the
cost-plus mark-up initial relationship.

3. Lab charges are categorized as either “in-house” or “reference lab” (sent out to an estabiished
reference laboratory};

a. Llab charges are calculated in coordination with the Strategic Pricing team and Managed
Care Contracting Analytics. In-house test costs are computed by the Lab
Director/Manager, then appropriate markups are applied. Mark-up percentage may vary
by region and/or facility.

4. Pharmacy charges are established and maintained using a percentage of Average Wholesale
Price (AWP); the mark-up percentage this may vary by region and/or facility.

HOSPITAL-BASED PROCEDURE PRICING:
e Competitor market data including specific local peer charges wili be utilized as the primary
source for arriving at prices {sourced from the SSM-Enterprise current peer comparison tool)

AUDIT PROCESS
o  Pricing history records must meet the external auditor requirements and will be readily
available in an SSM-enterprise tool.

EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT
o All Emergency Department charges, for all SSM entities, are computed as a factor of the
existing Inpatient charge.

MODIFIERS:
o Modifier 50 is defined as a bilateral procedure performed on both sides of the body.
Bilateral Procedures {‘unilateral’ or ‘bilateral are part of the procedure description):
o Unilateral codes will be priced according to the Hospital Outpatient (Ancillary)
pricing policy stated above.
o Bilateral codes will be priced at a factor of the current code.

SUPPLIES & IMPLANTS

e |dentified as items with UB Revenue Code 27x.

¢ Supply and implant charges are established and maintained using a cost-plus mark-up
formula; any chargeson a specific fee schedule may not retain the cost-plus mark-up Initial
relationship,
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¢ Pricing for new implants and devices will take into consideration possible managed care
contract stipulations.

PASS THROUGH PRICING POLICY:
This policy includes devices, implants, drugs, biologicals, and radiopharmaceutical agents identified as
status indicators G and/or H in addendum B as published in the final rule of OPPS in the Federal Register.

o A special formula is used for devices/implants/drugs/biologicais and radiopharmaceuticals
that appear on CMS addendum B with status indicator H in the Federal register and must be
monitored guarterly for updates. If the item is removed from the listing, the charge must be
adjusted accordingly. Please review Addendum B on the CMS website for the current list of
device category codes.

e Where multiple hospitals share the same fee schedule, SSM takes an average of the cost-to-
charge ratios to use in the computation.

LAB PRICING:
Lab test commercial prices are computed using a combination of payor contracted reimbursement levels,
a markup based on cost, and a percentage of Medicare.

PHARMACY PRICING:

Hospital-based pharmacy services are priced through the Epic Witlow application and are not part of this
policy.

ORGAN AND STEM CELL PROCUREMENT:

Pricing of solid Organs is determined by the transplant department management using previous year
transplant data. Charges will incorporate administrative costs incurred including, but not limited to
transportation {flight) and surgeon fees. The organ acquisition codes are charged separately and in
addition to the procedure to transplant or infuse them. Charges may vary based on whether it is from a
tiving doner or cadaver. Physician procurement may also be added.

The Stem Cell program Is based on donations and pricing of this process is determined by the Bone
Marrow Transplant (BMT) Management team.

4. Document responsiveness to the needs of the indigent.
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b L YEAR.TODATE ]

Actual Budget Varlance Prior Year Varlance
SM.S1
Gross Revenue 1,344,500,933 1,324,079,976 20,420,557 1,284,644,138 61,856,795
Bad Debt 3,013,180 0.2% 22,381,846 1.7% 19,368,666 19,794,390 1.5% 16,781,210
Charity 23,962,810 1,85 9,428,020 0.7% {14,524,751) 5,863,690 0.8% { 14,099,320}
26,975,990 41,809,806 4,833,876 29,658,080 2,682,030
Self Pay Biscount 14,832,147 1.1% 10,107,649 0.5% {4, 124,498) 14,188,565 1.1% {642,582}
Total Uncompensated Care 41,808,137 41,917,514 . 109,377 43,846,645 2,038,508
Bad Debt & Charity as % of Gross 2.0% 2.4% 0.4% 2.3% -0.3%
Bad Debt, Chasity & Self-Pay as % of Gross 3.1% 3.2% 0.1% 3.4% ’ 0.3%
$variance based on % 755,861 3,993,081

Financial Assistance

SSM Health is committed to providing financial assistance to people who are without insurance,
underinsured, ineligible for a government program, or otherwise unable to pay for medically
necessary care. SSM Health will provide care of emergency medical conditions to individuals
regardiess of their ability to pay.

Our hospital based Financial Counselors or our Customer Service Team is happy to assist you
in finding the option that is right for you. Our Customer Service Team can be reached Monday
through Thursday, 8 am to 7 pm and Friday from 8 am to 5 pm CST. Please call:

« SSM Health Hospital bill - 888-818-3512
« SSM Heaith Medical Group bill - 888-918-3540

Medical Group Financial Assistance

Hospital Financial Assistance

Learn about the resources provided by our

We are committed to providing financial medical groups to support those in need.

assistance to people who are unable to pay
for medically necessary care.

Hospital & Medical Group Billing
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When you receive medical care, you also receive a lot of paperwork about your care. Hospital
and physician billing can be confusing. Find customer service contact information and frequently
asked guestions below about both SSM Health hospital bilis and SSM Health Medical Group
bills.

For all SSM Health hospitals:

e Call customer service at 888-91 8-3512
¢ Email us at biilinqquestions@ssmhealih.com

For all SSM Health Medical Group locations:

o Call customer service at 888-918-3540
s Emallus at billinaauestionsPB@ssmhealth.com
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SSM Health

Consolidated Financial Statements as of and
for the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and
2022 and Independent Auditor’s Report
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] Deloitte & Touche LLP
e o l e 100 5 4th 5t Suite 300
s st, Louls, MO 63102
USA
Tel: {314)342-4900

Fax X
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
5SM Health Care Corporation
St. Louis, Missouti

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SSM Health Care Corporation and subsidiaries
(doing business as 5SM Health) {SSMH}, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in pet
assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements {collectively referred to as the “financial statements”}.

Ih our opinion, the accompanying financia! statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financlal position of SSMH as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unlted States
of America {GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
Independent of SSMH and tc meet our other ethical responsibilities, In accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of nanagement for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
arror,

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about SSMH's ability to continue as
a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance Is a high fevel of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore isnot a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
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resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
s Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit,

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disciosures in the financial
statements.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of SSMH’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

s Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about SSMH’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

. '
MMJ ¢ Jowelde cor

March 20, 2024
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SSM HEALTH

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(In thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivaients
Investments
Current portion of assets limited as to use or restricted
Patient accounts receivable
Pharmacy claims and rebates receivable
Other receivables
inventories, prepaid expenses, and other

Estimated third-party payor settlements
Assets held for sale

Total current assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE OR RESTRICTED—Excluding
current portion

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT—Net

OPERATING RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

OTHER ASSETS:
Goodwill
Intangible assets—net

investments in unconsolidated entities
Other

Total ather assets

TOTAL

2023 2022
& 640,816 $ 574,339
20,479 112,203
519,413 454,838
934,411 976,730
1,196,998 900,547
125,745 151,393
269,311 274,458
75,288 7,812

25,650 -
3,808,111 3,452,320
3,499,206 3,232,722
2,841,331 2,860,691
221,142 194,735
528,949 289,661
328,907 179,751
328,563 383,567
53,482 35,557
1,239,901 888,536
$ 11,609,691 10,629,004

(Continued)
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SSiVi HEALTH

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(In thousands)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Revolving line of credit
Current portion of long-term debt and finance {ease obligations
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Short-term borrowings
Deferred revenue

Estimated third-party payor settlements
Other current liabilities

Total current liabitities
LONG-TERM DEBT— Excluding current portion
ESTIMATED SELF-INSURANCE OBLIGATIONS
OPERATING LEASE OBLlGATlONS——Ech‘udEng current portion
FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS—Excluding current portion
PENSION LIABILITY
OTHER LIABILITIES

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Without donor restrictions:
5SM Health net assets without donor restrictions
Noncontrolling interestin subsidiaries

Total net assets without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total net assets

TOTAL

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

-4 -

2023 2022
$ 97410 -

57,931 602,034
3,043,994 2,529,080
665,180 443,580
24,385 19,961
108,969 126,390
234,822 255,404
4,232,691 3,976,449
1,590,813 1,354,142
119,012 117,239
201,018 164,641
16,006 14,640
173,536 173,266
405,793 324,640
6,738,869 6,125,017
4,497,191 4,286,657
185,488 74,297
4,682,679 4,360,954
188,143 143,033
4,870,822 4,503,987

$ 11,608,691

$ 10,629,004

(Concluded)

42


jjorda0
Typewritten text
42


SSM HEALTH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(In thousands)

NET ASSETS

OPERATING REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT:
Net patient service revenues
Capitation revenues
Pharmacy henefit managerrevenue
investment income (loss)
Income from unconsolidated entities—net
Other revenue

Net assets released from restrictions

Total operating revenues and other support

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and benefits
Medical claims
Supplies
Pharmacy benefit managey supplies
professional fees and other

Interest
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE OTHER ITEMS

OTHERITEMS:
Long-lived asset impairment

OPERATING LOSS AFTER OTHER ITEMS

NONOPERATING GAINS AND (LOSSES):
Investment income (loss)
Loss from early extinguishment of debt
Net periodic pension income {cost)
Change in fair value of Interest rate swaps
Other—net

Total nonoperating gains (losses)—net

EXCESS (DEFICIT} OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES ATTRIBUTABLE TO

NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

EXCESS {DEFICIT) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES—Net of

moncontrolling interest

2023 2022
¢ 6,435,624 S 6,054,963
1,287,760 1,187,447
1,716,343 1,452,577
59,760 (69,547)
138,039 13,822
881,156 659,163
16,548 8,796
10,536,230 9,307,221
4,485,653 4,081,423
624,843 520,249
1,670,978 1,465,798
1,464,877 1,222,826
1,946,655 1,876,904
80,670 80,284
288,949 308,641
10,562,625 9,556,125
(26,395) (248,904}

(33,096) -
(59,491) (248,904)
321,583 (375,061)
(2,075)
24,645 (3,454)
25,646 165,200
(20,257) 266
351,617 (215,104)
292,126 (464,008)
39,511 612
$ 252,615 S (464,620)

{Continued)
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SSM HEALTH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
{inh thousands)

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS:
$SM Health net assets without donor restrictions:
Excess (Deficit) of revenues over eXpenses
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost
Net assets released from restrictions for property acquisitions
Purchase of interest in subsidiaries
Other—net

tncrease (Decrease} in SSM Heaith net assets witheut donor
restrictions

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries net assets
without donor restrictions:
Excess of revenues over expenses

Distributions to noncontrolling owners
Purchase of noncontrolling interestin subsidiary

Increase {Decrease) in noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries
net assets without donor restrictions

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

Contributions for charity care, property acquisitions, and
other programs

Gains (Losses) on investments——net

Net assets with donor restrictions released from restrictions
for operations

Net assets with donor resttictions released from restrictions
for property acquisitions

Other—net

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS-—Beginning of year

NET ASSETS—End of year

See hotes to consolidated financial statements.

2023 2022
$ 252,615 5 (464,620)
(54,783) 323,592
3,536 113
- (35,754)
9,166 (6,470)
210,534 {183,139)
39,511 612
(13,425) {5,689}
85,105 {132,295)
111,191 (137,372)
55,576 27,087
9,628 {9,880)
(16,551) {8,573)
{3,536) {113)
{7) 2,243
45,110 10,764
366,835 (309,747)
4,503,987 4,813,734
$4,870,822  $4,503,987

{Conciuded)
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SSM HEALTH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2023 AND 2022
(in thousands)

2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in het assets $ 366835 S (309,747)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost 54,783 (323,592)
Depreciation and amortization 288,949 308,641
Loss on early extinguishment of debt - 2,075
Loss on impairment 33,096 -
Amortization of debt premium (3,783} {19,501)
Contributions for long-term investment (902) {9,143)
Distributions to nencontroliing owners—net 13,425 5,689
{Gains) losses on investments—net (308,277) 528,794
Income from unconsolidated entities—net {139,039) (13,823}
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps {25,646) (165,200)
Loss on disposal of assets 1,921 9,810
Inherent contributions related to acquisition - {16,162)
Distributicns from unconsolidated entities 24,315 17,766
Payments for acquisition of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary - 164,100
purchase of noncontrolling interestin subsidiary (85,270) -
Medicare advanced payments under CARES Act . {302,359)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Investments 90,485 4,774
Patient accounts receivable 42,319 {119,217}
Pharmacy claims and rebates receivable (237,936) (341,838)
Other receivables, inventories, prepaid expenses, and other 83,107 115,486
Operating right-of-use assets 45,752 50,423
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other liahilities 530,076 391,374
Other changes to pension liability (56,231} {50,910)
Operating lease obligations (46,911) (51,686)
Estimated self-insurance obligations 4,412 8,256
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 675,480 {115,990}
(Centinued)
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SSM HEALTH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

purchase of property and eguipment

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment and sales of
other assets

purchase of assets limited as to use or restricted and
short-term investments

praceeds from sales of assets fimited as to use or restricted and
short-term investments

Contributions to unconsotidated entities

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired

purchases of other assets

Net cash (used in} provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments for acquisition of noncontrolling interest in subsidiary
Proceeds from issuance of long-term gebt
Payments on long-term debt
contributions for long-term investment
Distributions to noncontrolling owners—net
Debt issuance costs
Proceeds from patient loans
Payments on patient loans
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Payments on short-term borrowings
Proceeds from revolving line of credit
Payments on revolving line of credit

Net cash used in financing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of year

See notes to consalidated financial statements,
-8-

2023 2022
$ (280,090) § (308,103)
570 7,096
(3,074,105) (2,712,400}
2,883,312 3,290,515
(3,775) {10,480)
(117,290) {143,855)
{26,569) {28,389}
(607,947) 93,384
- {164,100
389,760 354,654
{690,169} {294,525)
902 9,143
(13,425) (5,689)
{3,626) (1,194)
5871 11,204
(9,379) {13,175}
224,600 167,277
(3,000 (171,322)

97,410 -
- (60,000}
{1,056) {167,727)
66,477 (190,333)
574,339 764,672
S 640,816 S 574,339
{Concluded)
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SSM HEALTH

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
{Dollarsin thousands}

1. ORGANIZATION

sSM Health (SSMH) is a centrally managed, fully integrated health care delivery system with its
headquarters based in St. Louis, Missouri. S Health Care Corporation (SSMHCC) {doing business as
$SMH) is the principal not-for-profit corporation and has been established as the parent corporation,
$SMH owns and operates 22 adult hospltals, one pediatric hospital, thirteen post-acute care facilities, a
national pharmacy benefit management company {PBM}, an extensive network of physician practice
operations, and other health care businesses. SSMH's hospital operations are located primarily in
Missouri, Wisconsin, Oklahoma and Hlinois, and its related businesses provide health related services in
50 states. SSMH’s mission statement is as follows:

Through our exceptionat health care services, we reveal the healing presence of God.

SSMHCC and most of its affiliated subsidiary corporations have been granted exemption from federal
income tax as charitable organizations under Section 501(c){3) of the internal Revenue Code (IRC}.
Certain subsidiaries of SSMH are for-profit entities that are taxable under the IRC.

SSMH is sponsored by SSM Health Ministries, an independent ten-member body composed of two
Franciscan Sisters of Mary, one Sister of St. Agnes, one lesuit priest, cne Franciscan priest, and five lay
persons who collectively hold certain reserved powers over SSMH.

2. SSIVIH SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation—The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of SSMH and its subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP), requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabHities and disclosure of contingent
assets and Habilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash and liquid marketable
securities with an original maturity of three months or less and carrying amounts approximate their fair
value.

Inventories—Inventories, primarily consisting of supplies and pharmaceuticals, are stated at the lower
of cost or net realizable value, determined principally using the first-in, first-out method. SSMH held
inventories in the amount of $177,094 and $166,366 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
These amounts are included in inventories, prepaid expenses, and other on the consolidated balance
sheets.
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investments—Investments with original maturities at time of purchase of greater than three months
are measured at fair value.

Financial Instruments—Management's estimates of the fair value of financial instruments are
described elsewhere (See Note 8—Fair Value Measurements for additional information). Due to the
volatility of the U.5. economy and the financial markets, there is uncertainty regarding the long-term
impact that market conditions will have on SSMH’s investment portfolio.

Assets Held for Sale—S55MH classifies certain assets as assels held for sale in the consolidated balance
sheets when the assets have met applicable criteria for this classification (See Note 12—Ministry
Activities for additional information)}.

Assets Limited as to Use or Restricted—Assets limited as to use include investments and other assets
set aside by the Board of Directors or management at their discretion for future long-term purposes,
including capital improvements, medical insurance claims or for other purposes, and assets held In trust
under bond indentures and self-insurance agreements, Assets restricted as to use include investments
and other assets whose use is restricted by donors. Additionaliy, under the terms of the indentures for
various bond issues, funds held by trustees have been established and legally designated for debt
service.

Securities Lending Program—5SMH participates in securities lending transactions with its custodian
whereby SSMH iends a portion of its investments to various brokers in exchange for collaterai for the
securities loaned, usually on a short-term basis. SSMH maintains effective control of the loaned
securities through its custodian during the term of the arrangement in that they may be recalled at any
time. Collateral received from brokers must equal at least 102% of the market value of the securities on
loan, and is subsequently adjusted daily for market fluctuations. SSMH must return to the borrower the
value of collateral received regardless of the impact of market fluctuations. All collateral is in the form
of United States Treasury securities, which can be re-invested in a pool maintained by the custodian.
Under the terms of the agreement, the borrower must return the same, or substantially the same,
investments that were borrowed.

The securities on loan under this program are recorded within assets limited as to use {See Note 7—
Assets Limited As To Use for additional information). The market value of collateral heid for loaned
securities is reported as collateral held under a securities lending program and an obligation is recorded
in current liabilities for repayment of collateral upon settlement of the lending transaction. The fees
received for these transactions are recorded in investment income.

Centralized Investment Program-—SSMH holds the majority of its investments in a Centralized
Investment Program (CIP), which aiso includes the investments of sSMH's defined benefit plans, The
earnings are allocated proportionately according to ownership percentages as defined in CIP
agreements.

SSMH has elected the fair value option for financial investments in limited partnerships and fimited
liability corporations made through its CIP that would otherwise be recorded using the equity method.
SSMH made this election to ensure that the accounting treatment of these investments was
comparable between categories, regardless of the current organizational structure of the various
investments. Interest and dividend income on investments for which the fair value option has been
elected is included in either operating or nonoperating investment income depending on various
factors as described in SSMH’s investment income accounting policy below.

-10 -
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Alternative investments are generally not marketable and many alternative investments have
underlying investments that may not have quoted market values. The estimated value of such
investments is subject to uncertainty. SSMH’s risk is limited to its capital investment in each investment
and capital cali commitments (See Note 8—Fair Value Measurements for additional information).

Derivative Instruments—SSMH'’s policy seeks to provide sound stewardship of financia! resources by
effectively managing both the level of outstanding debt and the proportion of variable to fixed rate
debt. Accordingly, SSMH periodically enters into derivative arrangements to manage interest rate risk.
5SMH may also enter into various exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts for
economic hedging purposes, including futures, options, swaps and forward contracts.

SSMH records derivative instruments as either an asset or liability measured at its fair vaiue (See

Note 8—Fair Value Measurements for additional information). The astimated fair value of all derivative
instruments has been determined using available market information and valuation methodologles,
primarily discounted cash flows. Interest rate swap derivatives are reported in other noncurrent assets
or other noncurrent liabilities and investment asset derivatives are disclosed within assets limited as to
use or restricted. SSMH does not offset fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments and
fair value amounts recognized for cash collateral posted.

The net change in the fair value of interest rate swap derivatives is recorded as a nonoperating gain or
loss. The difference between the actual amount paid and the actual amount received on all interest
rate swap derivatives is accrued and recognized as an adjustment 1o interest expense {See Note 18—
Derivative Instruments for additional information),

Investments in Unconsolidated Entities—investments in unconsolidated entities, other than limited
partnerships and limited liability corporations in CIP, are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, as appropriate. if SSMH has at least 20%, but not more than 50%, or has the ability to
exerclse significant influence over the investee, the investment is accounted for under the equity
method, and the income, loss and any gain related to equity method investments are reflected in
income from unconsolidated entities—net (See Note 11-—Investments in Unconsolidated Entities for
additional information}.

investment Income—Most investment income is reported as nonoperating gains or losses. Investment
income on funds held in trust for self-insurance purposes and funds without donor restrictions held by
foundations is included in operating investment income. The cost of investments sold is based on the
specific-identification method.

investment income on investments of donor-restricted funds, other than endowments, is included in
excess of revenues over expenses unless the income or loss is restricted by donors. Investment income
that is restricted by the donor is recorded directly to net assets with donor restrictions, in accordance
with the donor-imposed restrictions.

SSMH values commingled funds, hedge funds, certain limited partnership and REIT {Real Estate
Investment Trust) interests at net asset value. Limited partnership interests not recorded at net asset
value are recorded at fair value as determined by external fund managers based on factors described
{(See Note 8—Fair value Measurements for additional information). Gains and losses on these
investments are included in nonoperating investrent income unless restricted by donors.

-11-
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Property and Equipment—Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost or, If donated or
impaired, at fair value at the date of receipt or impairment. Depreciation expense is determined using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset: 5 to 25 years for land
improvements, 5 to 40 years for bulldings, and 3 to 20 years for equipment. The remaining useful lives
of assets are reviewed and may be adjusted by management from time to time. Equipment under
finance leases is amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the
estimated useful life of the equipment. Such amortizatior: Is included in depreciation and amortization
expense. Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during construction periods are capitalized as a
component of the asset cost.

SSMH periodically evaluates property and equipment to determine whether assets may have been
impaired. Such analyses include comparing the estimates of undiscounted future cash flows to the
carrying values of the related assets. (See Note 9—Property and Equipment for additional informatian).

Leases—SSMH records the rights and obligations arising from lease contracts with durations greater
than twelve months on the balance sheet (See Note 16—Leases for additional information). Right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of
lease payments over the lease term. SSMH uses an estimated incremental borrowing rate, which is
derived from information available at the lease commencement date, in determining the present vatue
of lease payments. The discount rate is based ona collateralized basis for simifar terms and economic
environments,

SSMH’s leases typically contain rent escalations over the lease term. These leases are expensed on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Additionally, certain leases contain incentives, such as tenant
improvement allowances from landlords and/or rent abatements after taking possession of the leased
property. These incentives reduce SSMH’s right-of-use asset related to the lease and are amoriized
through the right-of-use asset as reductions of expense over the lease term.

SSMH accounts for all fixed lease and non-lease components as a single component for certain classes
of assets. Therefore, the lease payments used to measure the lease liability for these leases include
fixed minimum rentals along with fixed operating costs such as common area maintenance and utilities.
Certain lease agreements include payments based on actual common area maintenance expenses and
others include rental payments adjusted periodically for inflation. These variable lease payments are
recognized in professional fees and other on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in '
het assets, but are not included in the right-of-use asset or liability balances.

SSMH's leases relate primarily to medical and office spaces. Most office ieases have a five to ten-year
base period and include renewal options to extend the lease term beyond the initial base period. The
renewal options are not included in the measurement of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
unless SSMH is reasonably certain to exercise the optional renewal periods, SSMH’s lease agreements
do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants,

Goodwill—Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from assets acquired in business
combinations that are not individually identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is evaluated for
possible impairment at the reporting unit level at least annually or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Fair value of a
reporting unit is estimated using a combination of Income-based and market-based valuation
methodologies. An impairment is recorded if the carrying value of the goodwill exceeds its implied fair
value. There were no goodwill impairments identified during 2023 or 2022,

-12-
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Intangible Assets—Net—Intangibie assets include capitalized computer software costs, tradenames,
noncompete agreements, and other intangible assets acquired from independent parties. intangible
assets with a definite life are amortized on a straight-line basis, with estimated useful lives ranging from
one to 20 years. Amortization of intangible assets is included in depreciation and amortization expense.
SSMIH reviews the carrying value of its amortizable intangible assets only when impairment indicators
are present. SSMH evaluates intangible assets for impairment by comparing the estimates of
undiscounted future cash flows to the carrying values of the related assets. Indefinite-lived intangible
assets are evaluated for possible impairment at least annually or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the asset might be impaired. There were ho material intangible asset
impairments identified during 2023 or 2022.

Software Costs—Capitalized computer software costs include internally developed software. Costs
incurred in developing and instailing internal use software are expensed of capitalized depending on
whether they are incurred in the preliminary project stage, application development stage, or post
implementation stage. Capitalized software costs and related accumulated amortization expenses are
included in intangible assets—net on the consolidated balance sheets {See Note 10— Goodwiil and
Other intangible Assets for additional information}).

Pension Liability—Pension liability represents the value of the projected benefit obligation of SSMH's
pension plans over the fair value of the plans’ assets. The pension plan obligations and plan assels are
measured annually as of December 31 (See Note 14--Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
for additional information).

Other Liabilities—Other liabilities include various deferred compensation plans, the fair value of
interest rate swaps, and various other noncurrent liabilities.

Net Patient Service Revenues and Patient Accounts Receivable—Net patient service revenues relate to
contracts with patients and in most cases involves a third-party payor (e.g. managed care insurance
companies, Medicare and Medicaid) in which SSMH'’s performance obligations are to provide patient
care. Net patient service revenues are recorded at expected collectible amounts over the time in which
obligations to provide patient care are satisfied. Revenues are accrued to estimate the amount of
revenue earned to date for patients who have not been discharged and whose care services are not
complete as of the reporting period. Substantially all of SSMH’s performance obligations are satisfied
within one year.

SSMH determines the transaction price based on gross charges for gocds and services provided,
reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, discounts provided to uninsured
and underinsured patients in accordance with SSMH’s policies, and implicit price concessions provided
to patients, Patients who have health care insurance may also have discounts applied related to their
copayment of deductible. SSMH determines its estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts
based on contractual agreements, its discount policies, and historical experience using the portfolio
approach. SSMH determines its estimate of implicit price concessions hased on its historical collection
experience with classes of patients using a portfolio approach and records these as a direct reduction to
net patient service revenue. Management continually reviews the contractual estimation process to
consider and incorporate updates to laws and regulations and frequent changes in managed care and
commercial contractual terms resulting from contract negotiations and renewals.

A significant portion of SSMH’s revenue is generated under agreements with Medicare and Medicaid,
payments for services covered by Medicare are based on federal regulations specific to the type of
service provided. Medicaid pays for most services at prospective rates which are determined by the

-13 -
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regulations of the state in which the beneficiaries reside. Hospital facilities that meet certain
requirements receive additional funds in partial payment for the cost of medical education and caring
for the indigent. Laws and regulations governing Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to varying interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded
estimates will change by a material amount.

Included in net patient service revenues are Medicaid supplemental payments which are funded
through state financial arrangements commonly referred to as provider taxes. Under provider tax
arrangements, states collect taxes from healthcare providers and then use the revenue to pay the
providers as a Medicaid expenditure, which aliows the states to then claim additional federal matching
funds. Current federal law provides for a cap on the maximum allowable provider tax as a percentage
of the provider’s total revenue. There can be no assurance that federal law will continue to provide
matching federal funds on state Medicaid expenditures funded through provider taxes, or that the
current caps on provider taxes will not be reduced. SSMH participates in assessment programs inthe
four states in which it operates. For the year ended December 31, 2023, $SMH recognized 5283,600 in
revenue and $196,960 in expenses relating to these programs. For the year ended December 31, 2022,
SSMH recognized $352,754 in revenue and $190,898 in expenses refating to these programs.

Further, SSMH has negotlated contracts with certain other third-party payors. Revenues under these
contracts are based primarily on payment terms involving predetermined rates per admission, per diem
rates, discounted fee-for-service rates, value-based payments and other similar contractual
arrangements. SSMH estimates the discounts for contractual allowances at the individual haspital level
utilizing billing data on an individual patient basis. On a monthly basls, an estimate is made of the
expected reimbursement for patients of managed care plans based on the applicable contract terms. In
addition, the contracts SSMH has with commercial payors also provide for retroactive audit and review
of claims.

Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive adjustments due to audits, reviews or investigations
are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the estimated
transaction price for providing patient care. SSMH uses the expected value method of calculating
estimated revenue, receivables and liabilities as it relates to third-party settiements. These settiements
are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payor, correspondence from the
payor and SSMH’s historical settlement activity, including an assessment to ensure that it is probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occus when the
uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements
are adjusted in future periods as adjustments necome known (i.e, new information becomes available),
or as years are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews, and investigations. In 2023 and
2022, net patient service revenues increased by $121,778 and $57,859, respectively, relating to
changes in estimates for prior years’ settlements from Medicare, Medicaid and other programs.

SSMH also provides services to uninsured patients and offers discounts from standard charges. The
discount varies by geographical location, primarily based on the discounts negotiated with the local
private third-party payors.

Consistent with SSMH’s mission, care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to pay.
Therefore, SSMH has determined it will provide implicit price concessions to uninsured patients and
patients with other balances {e.g. copays and deductibles). The implicit price concessions included in
estimating the transaction price represent the difference between amounts billed to patients and the
amounts SSMH expects to collect based on its collection history with those patients.

14 -
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After all payments, discounts, and reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted, SSMH follows
established guidelines for placing certain past-due patient balances with collection agencies, subject tc
the terms of certain restrictions on collection efforts as determined by SSMH. Accounts placed with
collection agencies are written off and excluded from patient accounts receivable.

Estimated Third-Party Payor Receivable and Payable Settlements—SSMH has agreements with payors
that provide for payments at amounts different from established charges. These estimated amounts
are subject to further adjustments upon review by third-party payors {See Note 21—Commitments and
Contingent Liabllities for additional information).

Capitation Revenue—5S5MH receives capitation Insurance premiums based on the demographic
characteristics of covered members in exchange for providing comprehensive medical services for
those members. Most of this revenue is from Medica, a health insurance plan provider, which SSMH
has a 45% interest in and therefore isa related party. SSMH recorded capitated revenue from Medica
on the consolidated statement of operations in the amount of $1,276,485 and $1,178,264 for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Pharmacy Benefit Manager Revenue, Pharmacy Claims and Rebates Receivable—Pharmacy product
revenue and other revenues are recognized by SSMH's national PBM company, Navitus Health
Solutions, LLC {NHS}, which provides pharmacy benefit administration services to a variety of clients.
Revenue is recognized when the product is shipped.

Pharmacy claims and rebates recelvable consist of amounts due from clients for pharmacy and member
claims and rebates receivabie from pharmaceutical manufacturers. SSMH assumes no risk for payment
of the claims and considers these accounts to be fully collectible.

Other Revenue and Other Receivables—Other revenue Is recorded at amounts SSMH expects 10 collect
in exchange for providing goods or services not directly associated with patient care and recorded over
time in which obligations are satisfied. Other receivables consist primarily of amounts due from retail
pharmacies, premium receivables, and accrued interest recelvable, Other revenue also includes Public
Health and Social Services Emergency Fund {Relief Fund} and Employee Retention Credits {See note 3 —
COVID-19 Pandemic and CARES Act Funding).

Deferred Revenue—Deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheets primarily consists of
insurance premiums billed and due in advance of a coverage period as well as certain funds received
under the federal government’s Cotonavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act.

Medical Claims—Medical claims consist of payments to health care providers and are accrued as of the
date of service and reported net of recoveries. Those amounts are $82,148 and $85,716 for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Recoveries consist mainly of drug company voiume
discounts, reinsurance, and government program risk-sharing and subsidies.

Changes in estimates of claims costs resulting from an ONgoing review process and differences between
estimates and payments for claims are recognized in the period in which the change in estimate Is
identified or payments are made. The liability for unpaid medical ciaims for medical services purchased,
which is included in accounts payable on the consolidated balance sheets, is based on known amounts
of reported claims and an estimate of incurred but not reported claims using past experience adjusted
for current trends.

Contributions—Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized at their fair
value at the time of receipt. Certain contributions have restrictions placed on their use by the donors.
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For example, if the gift is restricted to property and equipment purchases, it is recorded initially within
net assets with donor resttictions. When the restrictions have been met, these restricted contributions
are recorded as net assets released from restrictions for property acquisitions. Contributions for which
donors have not stipulated restrictions are reported as other revenue on the consolidated statements
of operations and changes in net assets.

Endowment assets include donor-restricted funds that SSMH must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-
specified period. SSMH retains in perpetuity the original value of initial and subsequent gift amounts
donated to the endowment and any accumulations to the endowment made in accordance with the
applicable donor gift instrument. Donor-restricted amounts not retalned in perpetuity are classified as
net assets with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the SSMH
ministry that received the donation. SSMH considers the following factors in making determinations to
appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

State law;

The duration and preservation of the fund;

The purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds within SSMH’s communities;
General economic conditions, including the possible effects of inflation and deflation;
The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;

The investment poticies of the ministry; and

Other resources available to the ministry and its beneficiary, if applicable.

@ a0 oo

Performance indicator—The performance indicator is excess of revenues over expenses. Changes in
net assets without donor restrictions that are excluded from the performance indicator include:
permanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services; contributions of
long-lived assets {including assets acquired using contributions that by donor restriction were to be
used for the purpose of acquiting such assets); noncontrolling interests related to acquisitions and
changes in ownership while retaining controlling financial interests; distributions to noncontroiling
owners; and pension-related changes other than the net periodic pension cost.

Net Assets—Resources are classified for reporting purposes as net assets without donor restrictions
and net assets with donor restrictions, according to the absence or existence of donor-imposed
restrictions. The Board of Directors has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net
assets for future use as described (See Note 7—Assets Limited As to Use or Restricted for additional
information). Net assets with donor restrictions are those assets, including contributions and
accumulated investment returns, whose use has been limited by donors for a specific purpose or time
period or are those for which donors require the principal of the gifts to be-maintained in perpetuity to
provide a permanent source of income.

Noncontrolling Interests—The consolidated financial statements inciude all assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses of entities, controlled by SSMH and less than 100% owned, and therefore consolidated.
Accordingly, SSMH has reflected a noncontrolling interest for the portion of net assets pot owned or
controlied by SSMH separately on the consolidated balance sheets.

Consolidated Statements of Operations—For the purpose of display, transactions deemed by
management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of patient care and related services are
reported as operating revenues and expenses. peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as
nonoperating gains and losses.
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Other [tems—Other items includes long-fived asset impairment after an evaluation of certain assets,
which were then adjusted to their net realizable valute for the year ended December 31, 2023 {See
Note 12—Ministry Activities for additional information).

Advertising Costs—SSMH expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expenses were
$19,320 and $17,552 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are included
in professional fees and other on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assefs.

Income Taxes—SSMH is generally not subject to federal or state income taxes. However, SSMH is
subject to income taxes on net income derived from a trade or business, regularly carried on, which
does not further the organization’s exempt purpose. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
management has determined that no significant income tax provisions are required and as such none
have been recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

SSMH's for-profit subsidiaries recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of their assets and liabilities along with net
operating losses that meet the more likely than not recogniticn criteria. Changes in recognition or
measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs. Penalties and
interest incurred on income tax liabilities, if any, are included in nonoperating gains and (losses)
other—net on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized when it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained upon examination, including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation
processes, based on the technical merits, SSMH did not record uncertain tax positions in 2023 or 2022,

Non-Cash Transactions—During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, SSMH had the
following non-cash transactions:

2023 2022

Decrease in securities lending program 520,223 580,598
Property and equipment purchases financed through

accounts payable and other purchases 13,947 9,780
Operating right-of-use assets obtained in exchange

for new operating lease obligations 78,067 45,536
Finance leases additions 1,751 -
Notes payahie acquiredin purchase accounting - 68,108

COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND CARES ACT FUNDING

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization designated COVID-19 as a globai pandemic which
impacted SSMH'S patients, communities and employees. Federal, state, and local governments issued
emergency declarations that resulted in a substantial portion of the population remaining at home, On
March 18, 2020, CMS released guidance that alt elective surgeries and non-essential medical
procedures be delayed during the COVID-19 pandemic, with many states issuing temporary bans on
providing these services, including states where SSMH operates.

in response to COVID-19 and its economic impact, the federal government’s Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Security {CARES) Act was signed into law on March 27, 2020. The CARES Act authorized
funding to healthcare providers to be distributed through the Public Health and Social Services
Emergency Fund (Relief Fund). Payments in the form of grants from the Relief Fund were tc be used to
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reimburse the recipient for health care refated expenses or lost revenues attributable to COVID-19.
These grants are not required to be repaid, provided the recipients attest to and comply with the terms
and conditions.

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, $36,952 and 565,439, respectively, Relief Funds
have been included in Other revenue on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets. Management will continue to monitor the terms and conditions of the Relief Fund and the
impact of COVID-19 on S5M H's revenues and expenses. These funds are not required to be repaid upon
attestation and compliance with certain terms and conditions.

The CARES Act permitted employers to defer payment of the 6.2% employer Social Security tax
peginning March 27, 2020 through December 31, 2020. Deferred tax amounts were required to be paid
in equal amounts over two years, with payments due December 2021 and December 2022, At
December 31, 2022 all deferred tax amounts had been repaid.

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, $49,943 and $39,521, respectively, has been
recorded of Employee Retention Credit {ERC) revenue. These payroll tax credits relate to qualified
wages and are recorded in Other revenue on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT MINISTRY

In line with its mission, SSMH provides health care services to patients without regard to their ability to
pay for those services. For some of its patient services, SSMH receives no payment or payment that is
less than the full cost of providing the care.

5SMH voluntarily provides free or discou nted care to patients who are unable to pay for all or part of
their health care expenses as determined by SSMH’s criteria for financial assistance, Because SSMH
does not pursue the collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported
as patient service revenues.

SSMH also commits significant time and resources to activities and critical services that address unmet
community needs. Many of these activities are sponsored with the knowledge that they will not be self-
supporting or financially viable. The following summary has been prepared in accordance with Internal
Revenue Service Form 990, Schedule H and the Catholic Health Association of the United States’
publication, A Guide for Planning & Reporting Community Benefit, 2015 Edition,
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The estimated costs of SSMH’s community benefit ministry for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, are as follows:

2023 2022
Financial Assistance and Means-tested Government
Programs:
Chatity care at cost $ 101,844 $ 58,014
Unpaid costs of Medicaid 214,626 255,496
Costs of other means-tested government programs 30,330 17,465
Total Financial Assistance and Means-tested
Government Programs 346,800 330,975
Other community benefits:
Community health improvement services 14,199 10,126
Health professions education 89,721 114,995
Subsidized health services 13,858 5,468
Research 15 28
Financial contributions 5,250 2,602
Community butlding activities 174 109
Total other community benefits 123,217 133,328
Total community henefit ministry $ 470,017 S 464,303

The estimated costs are calculated using a cost-to-charge approach. The costs of providing patient care
are divided by gross patient service revenue. This cost-to-charge ratio is then applied to the gross
charity, Medicaid, and other means-tested government programs charges to determine estimated
costs,

Charity care at cost represents the cost of services provided to patients who cannot afford to pay and
who meet the eligibility criteria of SSMH’s financial assistance policy (See Note 6—Concentration of
Credit Risk for additional information). Financial assistance is reported in terms of costs, not charges.

Unpaid costs of Medicaid represents the shortfall created when costs of providing services to
heneficiaries of Medicald excead the governmental payments.

Costs of other means-tested government programs represents the shortfall created when costs of
providing services to beneficiaries of other government programs exceed the payments received. These
programs include State Children’s Heaith Insurance Program and state and local indigent care medical
programs for low-income or medically indigent persons ineligible for Medicaid.

Community heaith improvement services are activities and services carried out to improve community
health beyond patient care activities and do not generate patient care bills, Some examples include
community health education, health screenings for underinsured and uninsured persons and support
groups.

Health profession education includes the unreimbursed costs of educational programs for health care
professionals such as physicians, interns and residents, medical students, and nurses.
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Subsidized health services are clinical programs that SSMH provides despite a financial loss so significant
that negative margins remain after removing the effects of financial assistance and Medicaid shortfalls,
SSMH continues to provide these services because they meet an identified com munity need and, if no
longer offered, would either be unavailable or fall to the responsibility of government or another not-
for-profit organization.

Rresearch includes clinical and community health research, as well as studies on health care deilivery
that are generalizable and shared with the public.

Financial contributions inciude funds donated to community organizations or to the community at large
for a community benefit purpose as well as certain in-kind donations such as medical supplies.

Community building activities represent the cost of activities which improve the community’s health
and safety by addressing the root causes of health problems, such as poverty, homelessness, and
environmental hazards.

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

The composition of net patient service revenues by payor and service fine for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

2023 2022
Medicare 20 % 20 %
Medicare managed care 16 15
Medicaid 6 10
Medicaid managed care 11 8
Managed care 41, 38
Commercial, self-pay and other 6 9
Total net patient service revenues percentage by payor 160 % 100 %

2023 2022

Hospital operations $ 5,431,838 § 5,003,843
Physician operations 861,161 928,532
Home health 74,595 72,394
Skilled nursing 68,030 50,194
Total net patient service revenues by service line S 6,435,624 S 6,054,963

Net patient service revenues does not include payment for services provided to patients covered under
$SMH's claims pools, These revenues are eliminated upon consolidation and have been excluded from
the ahove tables. Revenues from services provided to SSM H's claims pools amounted to $801,327 and
$761,965 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

SSMH provides health care services through its inpatient and outpatient care facilittes located in its
respective communities. SSMH attempts to collect amounts due from patients, including co-payments
and deductibles for patients with insurance, at the time of service, while complying with all federal and
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state laws and regulations, including the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act {EMTALA).
Generally, as required by EMTALA, patients may not be dented emergency treatment due to the
inability to pay. In nonemergency circumstances or for elective procedures, SSMH's policy is to verify
Insurance prior ta treatment; however, exceptions can occur, SSMH generally does not require
coliateral or other security in extending credit to patients; however, it routinely obtains assignment of
{or is otherwise entitled to recelve) patients’ benefits payable under their health insurance programs,
plans, or policies {e.g., Medicare, Medicaid, managed care, and commercial insurance policies).

SSMIH reviews its financial assistance and billing policies on a regular basis to ensure compliance with
IRS 501(r} regulations in accordance with the Affordable Care Act.

The mix of net receivables from patients and third-party payors as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, is
as follows:

2023 2022
Medicare 14 % 16 %
Medicare managed care 20 18
Medicaid 6 9
Medicaid managed care 11 11
Managed care 35 39
Commercial and other 14 7
Total net receivables from patients and third-party payors percentage 100 % 100 %

ASSETS LIMHTED AS TO USE OR RESTRICTED

A summary of assets limited as to use or restricted as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

2023 2022

Board designated:
Unrestricted board designated assets $ 3,256,674 g 2,998,636
Other restricted board desighated assets 295,259 258,651

Held by trustee:

Project and bond funds 2,954 2,988
self-insurance (Note 15) 194,780 200,085
Collateral held under securities lending agreements 61,394 81,617
Total held by trustee 259,168 284,680
Assets restricted by donor as to use 207,518 145,583
Total assets limited as to use or restricted 4,018,615 3,687,560
Less current portion 519,413 454,838
Noncurrent portion S 3,499,206 5 3,232,722
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A summary of investment income {loss) for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, Is as follows:

2023 2022
interest and dividends—net of investment fees S 82,694 S 74,326
Net realized gains (losses) on investments 60,338 (35,094)
Net unrealized gains {losses) on investments 247,939 {493,700)

$ 390,971 S {454,468)

The change In net unrealized gain {loss) on investments, including changes in value of restricted net
assets, held at December 31, 2023 and 2022, was $247,939 and $(493,700), respectively.

Investment income {losses) is reported as follows:

2023 2022
Operating investment income {loss) S 59,760 s {69,547)
Nonoperating investment income [loss) 321,583 {375,041)
Gains (losses) on investments—net—net assets
with donor restrictions 9,628 (9,880)
Total income {loss) $ 390,971 $ (454,468)

The amounts in the security lending program are included in the following classifications:

2023 2022
Equity securities $41,215 470,849
Government securities 2,055 -
Corporate obligations 15,918 8,642
Total $59,188 579,491

FAIR VALUE MEASUREIVIENTS

SSMH defines fair value as the price that would be received upon the sale of an asset or paid upon the
transfer of a Hability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
and in the principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability. The fair value should be
calculated based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, not
on assumptions specific to the ministry. In addition, the fair value of liabilities should include
consideration of nonperformance risk, including SSMH’s own credit risk.

The fair value of ali assets and Habilitles recognized or disclosed at fair value are classified based on the
lowest level of significant inputs. SSMH used the following methods to determine fair value:

Level 1—Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that SSMH has
the ability to access on the report date.

Level 2-—Inputs {financial matrices, models, valuation techniques) other than quoted market prices
included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. if the asset
or liability has a specified {contractual) term, a Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the
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full term of the asset or Hability. Such observable inputs include benchmarking prices for similar assets
in active, liquid markets, quoted prices in markets that are not active and observable yields, and
spreads in the market.

Level 3—Inputs (such as professional appraisals, quoted prices from inactive markets that require
adjustment based on significant assumptions or data that is ot current, or data from independent
sources) that are unobservable for the asset or liahility.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as listed in the following tables use the
following valuation methodologies:

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash equivalents that trade on a regular basis in active markets are
classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. Those that do not meet these criteria are classified as
Level 2.

Corporate Obligations—Corporate obligations are valued using guoted market prices and/or other
market data for the same or comparable securities and transactions in establishing the nrices,
discounted cash flow models, and other pricing methods. These models are primarily industry-standard
models that consider various assumptions, including time value and yield curve, as weli as other
relevant economic measures. Due to the nature of pricing methods utilized, corporate abligations are
classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

Government Securities—Government securities are valued using quoted market prices and/or other
market data for the same or comparable securities and transactions in establishing the prices,
discounted cash flow models, and other pricing methods. These models are primarily industry-standard
models that consider various assumptions, including time value and yield curve, as weli as other
relevant economic measures. Due to the nature of pricing methods utllized, government securities are
classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

Mutual Funds—Mutual funds are valued using the underlying net assets owned by the fund and are
classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy.

Equities—Equity securities are valued at the closing price reported on the applicable exchange on
which the security is traded and are classified as Leve! 1 within the fair value hierarchy.

Trading Derivatives and Interest Rate Swaps—Trading derivatives consist of interest rate swaps and
options, credit default swaps, and futures, for which fair values are estimated based on guoted market
prices and/or other market data for the same or comparable instruments and transactions in
establishing the prices. These derivatives are classified as Leve! 2 within the fair value hierarchy. Trading
derivatives in active markets are classified as Level 1 in the falr value hierarchy.

Guaranteed Fixed Funds—Guaranteed fixed funds are valued using guoted market prices and/or other
market data for the same or comparable securities and transactions in estabiishing the prices,
discounted cash flow models, and other pricing methods. These models are primarily industry-standard
models that consider various assumptions, inciuding time value and yield curve, as weli as other
relevant economic measures. Due to the nature of pricing methods utilized, guaranteed fixed funds are
classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

Hedge Funds—Hedge funds are valued primarily using net asset values, which approximate fair value,
as determined by an external fund manager based on quoted market prices, operating results, balance
sheet stability, growth, and other business and market sector fundamentals. As investments in hedge
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funds are measured at net asset value, they are included separately from the fair value hierarchy in the
table below,

Limited Liability Companies {LLC), Limited partnerships {LP) and Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT)
interests—LLC, LP and REIT interests are primarily vatued based on the most current financial
statements issued by each fund adjusted for cash flow to and from the fund subsequent to the financial
statement reporting date. The underlying investments are valued in accordance with the corresponding
valuation method for the investments held. The prices used to generate these valuations are
unobservable and therefore are classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. Limited liability
companies and limited partnership interests whose underlying securities are publicly traded are valued
at the closing price reported on the applicable exchange on which the underlying secutities are traded
and are classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy. A portion of LLC, LP and REIT interests are
valued using net asset values, which approximate fair value, as determined by an external fund
manager based on quoted market prices, operating results, balance sheet stability, growth and other
business and market sector fundamentals.

Commingled Funds—Commingled fu nds are valued using the net asset value based on the value of the
underlying assets owned by the fund, minus liabilities, multiplied by the current percentage ownership
of the fund. The underlying investments are valued in accordance with the corresponding valuation
method for the investments held. As com mingled funds are measured at net asset value, they are
inciuded separately from the fair value hierarchy in the table below.

Securities Lending—The security lending collateral is invested in a Northern Trust-sponsored
commingied collateral fund, which is com posed primarily of short-term securities. The fair value of the
commingled collateral fund is determinad using the calculated net asset value per share (or its
equivalent) for the fund with the underlying securities valued using technigues similar to those used for
marketable securities. As security lending is measured at net asset valtue, itis incluced separately from
the fair value hierarchy in the table below.

$SMH may be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis in accordance with GAAP. The following describes assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurting
basis:

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance—Cash surrender value of fife insurance is valued hased on the
underlying investments and represents the guaranteed value that would be received upon surrender of
the policies. 1t is classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

Assets Held for Sale—The fair value of assets held for sale is determined based on valuation
methodologies using management assumptions, including estimates of future cash flows and would
generally be considered Level 3 inputs {See Note 12—Ministry Activities for additional information).

Impaired Property and Equipment—The fair value of impaired property and equipment is determined
based on valuation methodologies as described in Note 2--SSMH Summary of Significant Accounting
policies which would generally be considered Level 3 inputs (See Note 9—Property and Equipment for
additional information),

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while SSMH believes that its methods
are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
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assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different

estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

s$MH holds the majority of its financial assets in CIP, which also inciudes the investments of its defined
benefit plans. The tables below do not reflect actual securities owned by SSMH. The values below
represent SSMH’s allocated non-pension share of CIP as well as investments in non-CIP assets.

The following tables summarize assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and

nonrecurring basis by the level of significant input:

December 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements:

331 § - $ 174,133
189 - 382,189
418 - 582,418
- 153,654
- 62,295
. 64,721
- £56,325
019 . 1,019
820 - 30,820
793 1,112,083 1,274,882
445 - 445
389 - 61,389

Asseis:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 109,802 § 64,
Corporate obligations - 382,
Government securities - 582,
Mutual funds:
Domestic equities 153,654 -
nternational eguities 62,285 -
Fixed income 64,721 -
Equities—domestic 656,325 -
Trading derivatives - 1,
Interest rate swaps - 30,
HC and LP interests - 162,
Guaranteed fixed funds -
Cash surrender value of life insurance - 61,
Subtotal $ 1,048,797 $_ 1,285,

404 $1,112,08% § 3,444,290

Investments measured at net asset value:
Comming!ed funds:

Securities lending 61,394
international equities 191,860
Fixed income 34,793
Hedge funds 176,070
i4C, LP, and REIT interests 111,546
Total assets 4,019,853
Liabilities—interest rate swaps S - 8 14,041 § - 8 14,041
Liabilities—trading derivatives 1,648 - - 1,648
Total liabilities $ 1,648 3 14,041 $ - 4§ 15689
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December 31,2022

Recurring fair value measurements:
Assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents
Corporate obligations
Government securities
Mutual funds:
Domestic equities
International equities
Fixed income
Equities —domestic
Trading derivatives
Interest rate swaps
LLC and LP interests

Guaranteed fixed funds
Cash surrender value of life insurance

Subtotal

Investments measured at net asset value:
Commingled funds:
Securities lending
international equities
Fixed income

Hedge funds
LLC, LP, and REIT interests

Total assets

Liabilities—interest rate swaps

Total liabitities

Level 1 Level 2 Leveld Total
$ 88301 § 48492 5 - $ 136,793
- 398,591 - 398,591
- 472,446 - 472,446
74,630 . - 74,630
51,191 - - 51,191
22,719 . . 22,719
661,787 - . 661,787
3,847 2,356 - 6,203
- 16,009 - 16,009
- 205,857 938,036 1,143,893
- 1,432 - 1,432
- 55,148 - 55,148
$902,475  $1,200,331 5938036 3,040,842
81,617
217,872
144,994
120,240
177,364
$3,782,929
S - $ 24876 § - $ 24,876
$ - $ 24876 S - § 24876
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The following table reconciles the information about the fair value of ssMiH’s financlal instruments
measured at fair value on a recurring basis presented in the table above to amounts presented in the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Assets:

Investments § 20479 $ 112,203

Assets [bmited as to use or restricted-—current portian 519,413 454,838

Assets limited as to use or restricted—excluding

current portion 3,499,206 3,232,722

Interest rate swaps recorded as other assets—other 30,820 16,009
Less items not recorded at fair value:

Unconditional promises to give—net (35,716) (16,839)

Other (14,249) {16,004)
Total assets $ 4,019,953 $3,782,929
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The values below represent SSMH’s defined benefit plan’s alloc

jevel of significant input:

December 31, 2023

Assets:
Cash equivalents
Corporate obligations
Government securities
Mutual funds—international

equities

Mutual funds—fixed income
Equities—domestic
Trading derivatives
LLC and LP interests

Subtotal

investments measured at
net asset value:
Commingled funds:
Securities lending
international equities
Fixed income
Hedge funds
LLC, LP and REIT interests

Total assets

Accrued income
Payable under security lending
agreement

Fair value of plan assets

Liabilities—trading derivatives

level 1

§ 18,766 5

21,545
11,412
316,149

level 2 level 3

28,339 $ - 8
160,601 -
250,084 -

371

81,425 340,959

ated proportionate share of CiP by the

Total

47,105
160,601
250,084

21,545
11,412
316,149

371
422,384

$ 367,872 S

520,820 $ 340,959 $

1,229,651

30,785
95,475
17,617
85,264

115,608

1,574,401

4,859

{30,785)

S 1,548,475

- S - $

450
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December 31, 2022 Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Cash equivalents S 36,487 $ 12,431 S - $ 48,918
Corporate cbligations - 141,126 - 141,126
Government securities - 151,996 - - 151,996
Mutual funds—international
eguities 20,756 - - 20,756
Equities-—domestic 303,235 - - 303,235
Trading derivatives - 686 - 686
11C and LP interests - 102,078 390,489 492,567
Subtotal $360,478 $ 408,317 $390,489 1,159,284
investments measured at
net asset value:
Commingled funds:
Securities lending 40,080
International equities 111,514
Fixed income 64,702
Hedge funds 65,180
LLC, LP and REIT interests 100,326
Total assets 1,541,086
Accrued income 3,464
Payable under security lending
agreement (40,080)
Fair value of plan assets S 1,504,470
Liabilities—trading derivatives S 862 $ - S - S 862

The following disclosures for level 3 and net asset value investments includes SSMH investments and
the investments of its defined benefit plans.

The allocated shares of level 3 assets for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, are as foliows:

SSMH’s
Defined
SSMH Benefit Plan
Investments Assets Total
December 31, 2023 $1,112,089  $340,959  $1,453,048
December 31, 2022 938,036 390,489 1,328,525

1t Is SSMH’s policy that transfers between levels will occur when revised information regarding the
towest leve! of significant inputs becomes available. There were no transfers between levels during
2023 or 2022,
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Changes related to the fair vaiues based on Level 3 inputs for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, are summarized as follows:

LLC and LP

Interests

Ending balance as of January 1, 2022 S 1,026,600
Realized gains 39,229
Unrealized gains 51,285
Purchases 307,899
Sales _ {96,488)
Ending balance as of December 31, 2022 1,328,525
Realized gains 73,033
Unrealized gains 45,524
Purchases 219,329
Sales (213,363)
Ending balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 1,453,048

The allocated shares of CIP assets measured at net asset value for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, are as follows:

SSMH's
Defined
SSMH Benefit Plan
investments Assets Total
December 31, 2023:
Commingied funds . S 288,047 5143,877 S 431,924
Hedge funds 176,070 85,264 261,334
LLC, LP and REIT interests 111,546 115,609 227,155
Total S 575,663 5$344,750 $ 920,413
December 31, 2022:
Commingted funds S 444,483 $216,296 § 660,779
Hedge funds 120,240 65,180 185,420
LLC, LP and REIT interests 177,364 100,326 277,690
Total S 742,087 $381,802 $1,123,889

-30-


jjorda0
Typewritten text
68


The commingled funds, hedge funds, and certain LLC, LP, and REIT interests are redeemabhle at net
asset value under the original terms of the agreements. However, it is possible that these redemption
rights may be restricted or eliminated by the funds in the future in accordance with the underlying fund
agreements. Assets recorded at net asset value at December 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

December 31, 2023

Commingled funds
Hedge funds (b}
LLC, LP and REIT interests te

Total

December 31, 2022

Commingled funds
tiedge funds fel

LLC, LP and REIT interests ©

Total

Redemption
Fair Redemption Notice
Value Frequency Period
431,924  Daily, semi-monthly, monthly 0-10 days
261,334  Monthly, quarterly, semi-annual 30-90 days
227,155  Quarterly 4590 days
920,413
Redemption
Fair Redemption Notice
Value Frequency Period

660,779  Daily, semi-monthly, monthly  0-10days

185,420 Monthly, quarterly 30-90 days
277,690  Quarterly, semi-annual A5-90 days
$1,123,889

) This category includes investments in commingled funds that primarily invest in financial
instruments of US and non-US entities, bonds, notes, bills, currencies, and interest rate and

derivative products.

) This category includes investments in hedge funds that maintain positions in long-short equity,
credit, currency and derivative securities.

© This category includes investments in certain limited liability companies, limited partnerships and
REIT interests that invest in the following: high-quality properties in major metropolitan areas;
participating mortgages secured by core real estate properties; and core infrastructure investments.
Investments in this category are primarily valued based upon independent appraisals using a cost

approach, market approach,

evidence,

or income approach, as well as consideration of other third-partly

SSMH’s unfunded commitments te purchase limited partnership interests is reported as follows:

December 31, 2023
December 31, 2022

SSMH’s
Defined
Unfunded SSMH Benefit Plan
Commitments [hvestments Assets
$ 446,980 72 % 28 %
476,480 65 35
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9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of property and equipment at December 31, 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

2023 2022

Land and improvements S 240,956 S$ 243,935
Buildings 3,783,867 3,768,792
Equipment 1,773,662 1,640,783

Total gross depreciable property and equipment 5,798,485 5,653,510
less accumulated depreciation 3,195,413 2,990,827

Total net depreciable property and equipment 2,603,072 2,662,683
Real estate held for future development 3,985 3,985
Construction in process 234,274 194,023
Total $ 2,841,331 $ 2,860,691

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, totaled $259,368 and
$271,229, respectively.

The book value of equipment under finance lease obligations at December 31, 2023 and 2022, totaled
$27,205 and $26,316, respectively. The related accumulated depreciation totaled 517,037 and $15,473
at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. These amounts are included in the above summary of
property and equipment,

SSMH determined that indicators existed that there was potential impairment of certain property and
equipment totaiing 418,109 for the year ended December 31, 2023 {See Note 12—Ministry Activities
for additional information).

10. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

A summary of Goodwill at December 31, 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

Accumulated
Gross tmpairment Loss Net
Balance at January 1, 2022 $189,496 S (38,303) $151,153
Acquired (See Note 12) 138,468 - 138,468
Balance at December 31, 2022 327,964 {38,303) 289,661
Acquired (See Note 12) 239,288 - 239,288
Balance at December 31, 2023 $567,252 S (38,303) $528,949
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11,

The following table provides information regarding other intangible assets for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Intangible Carrying Accumulated Intangibie
Amount Amortization Assets Amount  Amortization Assetls
Amortized
intangible assets:
Software 5483,626 $308,785 $174,841 $347,352 S 285,406 S 61,546
Trade name 108,563 71,215 37,348 104,900 64,000 40,900
Customer
contracts 151,980 38,750 113,230 111,621 36,444 75,177
Other 5,257 1,769 3,488 5,368 3,640 1,728
Total $749,426 5$420,519 $328,890G7 $569,241 $389,490 $179,751

The weighted-average amortization period for the intangible assets subject to amortization acquired
during the year ended December 31, 2023 Is approximately 3.4 years, There are no expected residual
values related to these intangible assets.

Amortization expense on these intangible assets was $29,581 and $37,572 during the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The estimated future amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives as of December 31, 2023,
is as follows:

Years Ending
December 31

2024 $ 41,585
2025 39,925
2026 35,406
2027 30,166
2028 25,905
Thereafter 155,920

Total $328,5907

INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

Investments in entities where SSMH does not have operaﬁng control, but is considered to be able to
exert influence, are recorded under the equity method of accounting. SSMH included the following
income from operations from equity method investments for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, as operating revenues:

2023 2022
Income and gain from operations {See Note 12) $ 140,518 $28,692
Losses from operations {1,479} {14,869)
income from unconsolidated entities—net $ 135,039 $13,823
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12, MINISTRY ACTIVITIES

sSMH entered into the following significant activities during the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022:

Navitus Health Solutions—Throughout 2022 and 2023, NHS held a 45% interest in Archimedes, LL.C
(Archimedes), a specialty drug management company that focuses primarily on specialty drug
management solutions for health plans, third party administrators, employers, laboy groups, and other
plan sponsors. On December 29, 2023, NHS acquired an additional 35.1% ownership interest in
Archimedes, making NHS an 80.1% majority and controiling owner.

in accordance with ASC 805, Business Combinations, the transaction was accounted for as a business
combination and acquired assets and liabilities were recorded at fair values while Archimedes became a
consolidated subsidiary of NHS on the date of acquisition. Previously, Archimedes had been accounted
for as equity method investment with NHS's share of earnings in Income from unconsolidated
entities—net on the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets and recorded as
an Investment in unconsolidated entities on the balance sheet of SSMH,

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, S5M recognized revenues from Archimedes’
equity method earnings totaling $9,392 and $1,964, respectively, in Income from unconsolidated
entities—net. As part of the purchase accounting, the investment in Archimedes was adjusted to its
acquisition date fair value of $170,780, which resulted in a gain of $101,099 recorded in Income from
unconsolidated entities—net in December 2023. Total assets acquired related to the Archimedes
acquisition of $470,120 includes £18,370 of cash and cash equivalents, 458,515 of pharmacy claims and
rebates receivable, $843 of inventory, prepaids, and other, $239,288 of goodwill and $151,000 of other
intangible assets—net, property and equipment—net of $1,412, and operating right of use assets of
$692. Total liabilities assumed of 78,411 is made up solely of $75,086 of accounts payable and accrued
expenses, $709 of deferred revenue, $384 of operating lease obligations—excluding current portion,
and $2,232 of other long-term liabilities.

SLUCare Physician Group—On May 6, 2022, $SM Health and its various subsidiaries entered into an
psset Transfer/Membership Interest Redemption Agreement with Saint Louis University that was
effective as of July 1, 2022, Under the terms of the agreement, SSM Health Care Group acquired ina
cash transaction substantially ail of the operating assets and assumed certain liabilities of SLUCare
Physician Group (“SLUCare”) from Saint Louls University. The agreement formally brings together the
academic medical expertise of SLUCare with S5M Health's high-quality, community-based care model
so that patients will have access to all levels of care, including highly specialized procedures and clinical
trials. The SLUCare transaction was accounted for as a business combination as of July 1, 2022 and
acquired assets and liabilities were recorded at fair values. Total assets acquired of $144,400 includes
47,672 of tangible assets, $138,451 of Goodwill, and $10,072 of other intangible assets—net. Total
liabilities assumed were $11,795. In addition, as part of this transaction, SsM Health redeemed Saint
Louis University’s 15% membership interest in SSM Health St. Louis in a cash transaction as displayed in
the consolidated statement of cash flows. S5SM Health recognized annual revenues from SLUCare
totaling $171,783 during the year ended December 31, 2023 and revenues totaling 593,391 for the six
months ended December 31, 2022.

Jmpairments and assets held for sale—As of December 31, 2023, a 433,096 impairment loss was taken
on the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets to adjust certain assets to their
net realizable value related to the abandonment of certain contracts and facilities that are being
repurposed or relocated. In addition, certain property and equipment assets were adjusted to their
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approximate fair value, less cost to sell that are now classified as held for sale. These Impairments
impacted the following balance sheet line items: property and equipment - net for $18,109, operating
right-of-use assets for $6,600, and other non-current assets for $8,387. The assets classified as assets
held for sale as of December 31, 2023 were $25,650.

DEBT AND FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS
Debt as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, consists of the following:

2023 2022

Fixed rate:
Series 20234 Bonds fixed rate debt, due 2039 with a put option June 2028,
5.00% |nterest rate, plus net unamortized preméum of $6,926 at
December 31,2023 5 8911 ¢ -
Series 20144, 2016 Sarah Community, 20£7A, 2017 Agnesian, 2018, 2018A, 20188,
2018C, 2019 Sarah Community, 20194, 20198, 2022A and 2023 Bonds fixed rate

debt, due through 2052, interestrates from 2.65% to 5.00% plus net unamortized
premium of $35,017 and $40,389 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively 1,500,832 1,836,214

Total fixed rate deht 1,589,743 1,836,214

Vartablerate:
Series 2019€ Variable Rate Direct Loans issued July 2019, 4.73% at

December 31, 2023, with put option July 2025, and maturing June 2028, 21,035 25,465
Series 2014B-G, Series 2018D-F, and 20238 Variable Rate Demand Bonds,
3.50% to 5.33% at December 31, 2023, due serially through 2053 665,180 443 580
Total variable rate debt 685,215 465,045
Revolving line of credit 97,410 -
Deferred financing costs {9,528) {7,899}
Commercial paper, 5.44% at December 31,2023 175,000 175,000

Note payable due through 2024, plus net unamortized discount of $404 and
$1,215 at December 31,2023 and 2022, respectively. Collateralized by certain

real estate 23,762 47,118
Unsecured note payable due through 2025 21,842 52,763
Notes payable, due atvarlous dates through 2028, interest at 8.00%

to 8.25%, unsecured 163 436
Finance lease ohligations, atvarying rates frem 3.60% to 13.31%

coliateralized by leased equipment and property 17,733 16,719

Total debt and finance lease obligations 2,602,340 2,589,396
Less commercial paper-recorded in other current liabilities 175,000 175,000
tess revolving line of credit 97,410 -
Less finance lease obiigations, exciuding current portion 16,006 14,640
Less short-term borrowings 665,180 443,580
Less current portion of jong-term debt and finance ease chligations 57,931 602,034
Tota! long-term debt 4 1,590,813 5 1,354,142
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$SM Health Master Indenture—SSMHCC Is a member of the SSM Health Credit Group (Credit Group}
and the only obligated group member pursuant to a master trust indenture (amended and restated)
dated May 15, 1998, The Credit Group also includes certain SSMH's affiliates referred to as “Designated
Affiliates” under the master trust indenture. SSMH corporations not included in the Credit Group
include NHS and Lumicera Health Services, as well as a variety of entities consisting primarily of
foundations, medical office building corporations, employed physician practices, and various other
corporations involved in activities supporting SSMH. The net assets of the Designated Affiliates are
avaitable to SSMHCC to service all obligations under the master indenture. Various issuing authorities
have issued tax-exempt revenue bonds under the master trust indenture. All debt under the master
trust indenture is uninsured, but is subject to certain debt covenants, including the maintenance ofa
minimum debt service coverage ratio.

During 2022, SSMH assumed contro! of a not-for-profit faith-based retirement com munity, which
included all assets and liabilities of the entity as well as assuming its debt. This entity became a fully
consolidated subsidiary outside of the Credit Group. The debt, which sits outside the credit group, is
guaranteed by SSMHCC and consists of two fixed rate bond series totaling approximately $19,000 and
$21,000 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Additionally, in 2023 SSMHC closed on
$381,985 of 2023 and 2023A fixed rate notes along with $224,570 of 2023B variable rate on demand
vonds and in turn, paid down the $614,325 outstanding on the 2018, 20188 and 2018C honds. As of
December 31, 2022, approximately $524,435 million of 2018 Notes, that were refinanced in 2023, were
outstanding in the current portion of long-term deht balance sheet line.

Variable Rate Bonds—The debt includes $686,215 and $469,045 at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, of variable rate bonds. The interest rates on these bonds are reset at daily or longer
intervals. The Serles 2014B-G, Series 2018D-F, and 20238 variable rate demand bonds are supported
through self-iquidity. The remaining variable rate bonds were issued as funded direct placements that
do not require liguidity support. These series are classified as short-term borrowings based upon these
accelerated terms. The contingent payments in the Contractual and Contingent Principat Repayments
table below reflect these accelerated terms. However, SSMH’s contractual payments do not reflect
these accelerated terms, if any of these agreements are terminated and not replaced, extended, or
renewed, SSMH can be required to purchase the tendered bonds at the specified bank rate ina
specified period.
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Contractual and Contingent Principal Repayments—Contractual and contingent principal repayments
on debt and finance tease obligations of SSMH are as follows:

Debt Finance
Contractual Contingent Lease
Payments Payments Obligations
2024 S 59,189 S 721,384 S 3,742
2025 34,933 44,763 2,856
2026 29,713 18,568 2,560
2027 530,005 515,190 2,622
2028 330,121 401,556 2,701
Thereafter 1,296,225 574,725 11,075
2,280,186 2,280,186 25,556

Plus amount representing net premium 41,539 41,539
lLess amount representing interest

under finance lease obligations (7,823)
Plus finance lease principal payments 17,733 17,733 s 17,733
Plus commercial paper 175,000 175,000
Plus revolving line of credit 97,410 97,410
Less deferred financing costs (9,528) {9,528)
Total debt and finance lease obiigations S 2,602,340 S 2,602,340

Other Notes Payable—In 2022, SSMH purchased a group of real estate properties that were partially
financed with a $48.3 million promissory note due to the seller of the properties. The note Is secured by
the properties and payable in equal installments with a final maturity date in 2024,

Commercial Paper—SSMH utilizes commercial paper supported by self-liquidity for general corporate
purposes. Under the program, SSMH is registered to Issue up to $400,000. At December 31, 2023 and
2022, $175,000 of commercial paper was issued and is inciuded in other current liabllities on the
consolidated balance sheets.

Revolving Line of Credit—SSMH utilizes revolving lines of credit for general corporate purposes. On
June 23, 2022, SSMH entered into a $500,000 364-day revolving line of credit agreement. This
agreement was amended and restated on June 22, 2023 to expand the facility size to $700,000. All
other terms remain the same. The revolver is secured under SSMH's existing master trust indenture.
NHS also maintains an unsecured $200,000 364-day revolving line of credit. As of December 31, 2023,
no balance was outstanding on SSMH's revolving line of credit, while NHS’ line of credit had a balance
outstanding of $97,410.

Deferred Financing Costs, Debt Premiums, and Discounts—Deferred financing costs and any premium
or discount are amortized using the effective interest rate method over the term of the related
obligation (or call date when applicable).
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14,

Cash Paid for interest—Cash paid for interest totaled $85,027 and $84,502 for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. SSMH capitalized interest costs in the amounts of $611 and
4373 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

SSMH administers several qualified and nonqualified pension plans for its employees. As of January 1,
2021, all benefits of the pension plans are frozen.

The following table summarizes the benefit obligations, the fair value of plan assets, and the funded
status at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation—beginning of period 1,681,475 52,324,828
Interest costs on projected benefit obligation 89,764 66,362
Actuarial loss (gain) 106,980 (551,906)
Settlements {(15,695) (7,281)
Benefits paid (137,332) {150,528)
Projected benefit obligation—end of period 1,725,192 1,681,475
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets—beginning of period 1,503,609 1,772,426
Actual return on plan assets 165,856 (165,440)
Employer contributions 27,224 50,G00
Settlements {15,695) {7,281}
Benefits paid {132,969) {146,097)
Fair value of plan assets—end of period 1,548,025 1,503,609
Net amount recognized at end of period and
funded status S {177,167) $ (177,867)
Accumulated benefit obligation—end of period $1,725,192 61,681,475

The actuarial loss on the benefit abligation for the year ended December 31, 2023 was primarily
attributable to the decrease in discount rate from 5.58% to 5.25%. The actuarial gain on the benefit
obligation for the year ended December 31, 2022 was primarily attributable to the increase in discount
rate from 2.95% to 5,58%.

SSMH holds the majority of the plans financlal assets in CIP, which also includes the investments
included in investments and assets whose use is limited. For a summary of the plans allocated
proportionate share of CIP, including fair value leveling see Note 8—Fair Value Measurements.

Under accounting guidelines non-qualified pension plan liabilities are included as pian liahilities, but the
investments are not considered to be plan assets. Accordingly, the table ahove does not include
investments with a fair value of $42,573 and $42,364 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively,
which are included as assets limited as to use or restricted on SSMH’s consolidated balance sheets.
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The following is a summary of the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets consist of:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ (3633) $ {4,601
Long-term pension liability (173,536) {173,266)
Net amount recognized $ {177,169)  § (177,867)
Amounts recognized in unrestricted net assets
consist of:
Beginning of year balance S 171,377 S 494,494
Arising during current year—net actuarial loss {gain} 59,166 (265,869)
Actuarial gain recognized due to settlement (3,100} (741)
Reclassified into net periodic benefit cost:
Net actuarial gain {loss) 60 (55,913}
Prior service credit (594) {594)
End-of-year balance , S 226,909 s 171,377

The following is a summary of the components of net periodic pension cost recognized in Nonoperating
Gains and {Losses) for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Interest costs on projected benefit obligation $ 89,764 S 66,362
Expected return on plan assets {118,043) (120,156}
Amortization of unrecognized:
Prior service cost 594 594
Net loss (60) 55,913
Net periodic pension cost (27,745) 2,713
Settlement 3,100 741
Total cost S {24,645) S 3,454

The following are the actuarial assumptions used by the pension plans to develop the components of
pension expense for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022;

2023 2022
Discount rates 558% 2.95%
Return on pian assets 7.50 7.50
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The following are the actuarial assumptions used by t

he pension plans to develop the components of

the pension projected benefit obligation as of December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Weighted average discount rates 5.25% 558 %
SSMH is not expecting to contribute to its pension plans in 2024,
Estimated Future Benefit Payments—The following benefit payments are expected to be paid:
Pension
Benefits
2024 $133,474
2025 135,103
2026 136,198
2027 138,614
2028 136,079
Years 2029-2033 627,978
The actual plan asset allocations and the allocation goals comprise the following investment
classifications at December 31, 2023 and 2022:
Allocation
2023 2022 Goals
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term
investments 0% 1% 1%
Equities 32 36 37
Fixed income 27 22 21
Core real estate 7 7 7
Real asset investments 6 6 6
Private credit 6 6 6
Hedge funds 5 5 5
Volatility risk premium 5 5 5
Private equity 12 12 12
1009% 100 % 100 %

SSMH’s investment objective with respect to pension
capital growth through a portfolio of diversified publi

plans is to produce sufficient current income and
¢ and private investments, which together with

appropriate employer contributions is sufficient to provide for the pension benefit obligations. Within
the real asset, private credit, and private equity categories are investments in limited liability

companies, limited partnerships and REIT interests. T
be a long-term rate expected on funds invested or to

he assumed return on pian assets is intended to
be invested in accordance with SSMH’s asset

allocation policy to provide for benefits reflected in the plans’ projected benefit obligation. In
developing the assumptions, SSMH evaluates input from its actuary and pension fu nd investment
advisors. Pension assets are managed by outside investment managers in accordance with the
investment policies and guldelines established by the pension trustees, and are diversified by

investment style, asset category, sector, industry, issuer, geographical location, and maturity.

Pension

assets are rebalanced each quarter per the plan’s asset allocation guidelines, SSMH anticipates that its
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investment managers will continue to generate long-term returns equal to or in excess of its assumed
rates.

Defined Contribution Plans—SSMH contributes to a defined contribution plan for eligible employees
based upon a percentage of employee compensation. The expense for this plan was $86,010 and
$71,109 for 2023 and 2022, respectively, and is inctuded in salaries and benefits on the consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets. SSMH also sponsors defined contribution plans
covering employees who participate in the voluntary tax deferred annuity program and other defined
contribution plans and who meet age and service reguirements. SSMH’s contributions to these plans
are based on a percentage of employee compensation or employee contributions. The defined
contribution pension expense for these plans was $72,423 and $57,456 for 2023 and 2022,
respectively, and is included in salaries and benefits on the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets,

SELF-INSURANCE

professional and General Liability Insurance—A majority of the members of SSMH participate in the
SSMH Liability Trust | or SSMH Liability Trust il (the “Trusts”). Both Trusts are revocable grantor trusts.
These Trusts, which cover primary limits of professional and general liability, require annual
contributions by participating entities at actuarially determined amounts.

SSMH’s underlying seif-insured retention for professional liability claims is as follows:

January 1, 2023 to

December 31, 2023
Per occurrence limits— Missouri,
Oldahoma and lllinois S 10,000
Per occurrence limits— Missouri, $ 15,000
(Select Locations)
Annual aggregate— Missouri, None

Oklahoma and Hlinois

SSMH’s hospitals and physicians located in Wisconsin are qualified health care providers as defined by
Wisconsin state statutes regarding professional liability coverage and participate in the State of
Wisconsin Injured Patients and Families Compensation Fund (PCF). As defined by Wisconsin state
statute, these hospitals and physicians have separate professional Hability limits of $1,000 per claim and
a $3,000 annual aggregate applied to each qualified provider. Losses in excess of these amounts are
fully covered through mandatory participation in the PCF. $SMH is commercially insured up to these
fimits for these hospitals and physicians. For any Wisconsin operation not qualified to participate in the
PCF, separate commercial limits of liability are purchased; limits and coverages are evaluated annually.
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SSMH’s underlying self-insured retention for general liability claims is as follows:

2023

Per occurrence limits— Missouri, Oklahoma,
Wisconsin and |liinois 53,000
Annual aggregate—Missouri, Oklahoma, None

Wisconsin and Hlinois

SSMH maintains reinsurance through a wholly owned captive for professional and general liability
claims exceeding the underlying self-insured retention. The reinsurance provides coverage (based on
specific policy terms, conditions and limitations) up to the limits in the following table. The sublimits
that apply are part of and not in addition to the overall policy aggregate limits.

January 1, 2023 to

All Locations December 31, 2023
Fach loss event S 145,000
Annual aggregate 145,000

The estimated professional and general liability obligation is recorded in the consolidated financial
statements at the present value of future cash payments for both asserted and unasserted claims, using
a discount rate of 3% at December 31, 2023 and 2022. The lability for self-insured reserves represents
estimates of the ultimate net cost of all losses and related expenses, which are incurred but not paid at
the balance sheet date based on an actuarial valuation. This estimated obligation is $141,813 and
$139,335 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, of which $43,622 and 541,099 Is recorded in
accounts payable and accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2023 and
2022, respactively,

The accumulated assets of the Trusts are not available to participating members except to pay covered
professional liability claims or to reduce future contributions when warranted by claims experience. [n
the event the Trusts are ever depleted, the participating members would be required to fund
deficiencies based on future actuarial determinations.

Dean Health Services (DHS) retains deductible levels with respect to its professional liability program.
For professional liability claims reported on or after July 1, 2004, the per-occurrence deductible level is
$1,000 per defendant, and the annual aggregate deductible level is $3,600. DHS is contractually
obligated to reimburse its insurance carriers for all claims paid under the professional liability policies.
The PCF also provides unlimited Insurance for amounts in excess of the deductibles, DHS recognized a
Hability of $7,836 and $7,367 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, of which $1,786 and $1,317
is recorded in accounts payable and accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheets at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Workers’ Compensation—A majority of the members of SSMH participate in SSMH’s centralized self-
insured workers’ compensation program. Claims in excess of certain fiability limitations are covered by
commercial insurance. The estimated workers’ compensation liability obligation is actuarially
determined. SSMH records these amounts in accounts payable and accrued expenses and in other long-
term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets at the present value of future cash payments for
both asserted and unasserted claims, using a discount rate of 1% at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
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16.

Employee Health Insurance—Effective January 1, 2020, all members of SSMH participate in the S5SM
Employee Health Care Plan as well as other self-funded plans (the Plans). Each participating member
funds an actuarially determined amount for payment of covered benefits and reiated expenses, which
are subject to certain limitations. Claims paid by the Plans are included in salaries and benefits expense
other on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and include claims paid
by the Plans to SSMH ministries of $238,563 and $224,198 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively. SSMH recorded on the consolidated balance sheets, in accounts payable and
accrued expenses, a reserve for incurred but not reported claims of $49,032 and 545,514 for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

LEASES

As of December 31, 2023, SSMH has $43,835 of current operating lease obligations included in
accounts payable and accrued expenses and $201,018 of long-term lease obligations on the
consolidated balance sheet. As of December 31, 2022, SSMH has $43,624 of current operating lease
obligations included in accounts payable and accrued expenses and $164,583 of long-term lease
obligations on the consolidated balance sheet.

The following table presents certain information related to the lease costs for cperating leases for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,

2023 2022
Operating lease costs S 78,443 S 82,954
Short-term lease costs 14,004 12,976
Variable lease costs 13,583 10,396
Total operating lease costs $ 106,030 $106,326

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the weighted average remaining operating lease term was
6.5 years and 6.8 years with a weighted average discount rate of 3.5% and 3.7%, respectively.

Commitments related to noncancelable operating lease obligations for each of the next five years and
thereafter are as follows:

2024 $ 50,997
2025 40,173
2026 35,820
2027 32,086
2028 28,392
Thereafter 113,036

Total undiscounted mintmum lease payments 300,504
Less amount of lease payments representing interest 55,651

Present value of future minimum lease payments 244,853
Less current obligations under accounts payable and accrued expenses 43,835
Long-term lease obligations $201,018
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17. NET ASSETS AND ENDOWMENTS

Net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following purposes for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Subject to expenditure for healthcare operations $120,319 S 81,665
Endowments subject to the SSMH Foundations’ endowment
spending policies and appropriation 67,824 61,368
Net assets with donor restrictions $188,143 $143,033

Net assets without donor restrictions were as follows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and

2022:
2023 2022
Undesighated $ 4,305,961 54,128,298
Board-designated for:
Foundation assets designated for hospital
operations and other 163,296 133,952
Endowments 27,934 24,407
191,230 158,359
Net assets without donor restrictions 54,497,191 54,286,657

Endowments consist of approximately 150 individual funds established for a variety of purposes. They
include both donoi-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the boards of trustees or

governors of each of its foundations to function as endowments {board-designated endowment funds).

Without
Donor  With Dohot
Changes in Endowment Net Assets Restrictions Restrictions Total
Endowment net assets—January 1, 2022 $729,852 $ 58,666 $ 88,518
Investment return—net loss (3,833) {6,762} {16,595
Contributions 669 10,427 11,096
Transfers to create board designated
endowment funds (825) 825 -
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure {1,456) {1,788} {3,244)
Endowment net assets—December 31, 2022 24,407 61,368 85,775
Investment return—net gain 3,916 7,127 11,043
Contributions 341 1,400 1,741
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure {730) (2,071} (2,801}
Endowment net assets—December 31, 2023 $27934 $67,824  § 95758

-44 -

82


jjorda0
Typewritten text
82


18.

Funds with Deficiencies—From time to time, the fair value of assets asscciated with individual denor-
restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or current law requires SSMH to
retain as a fund of perpetual duration (underwater endowments). SSMH has Interpreted applicable law
to permit spending from underwater funds in accordance with the prudent measures required under
the law. SSMH Foundations’ policies allows spending from underwater endowment funds, unless
otherwise precluded by donor intent or relevant laws and regulations. As of December 31, 2023, an
immaterial deficiency existed in two endowments across the system. As of December 31, 2022, an
immaterial deficiency existed in seven endowments across the system.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters—S$SMH Foundations have investment and spending practices
for endowment assets that intend to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs su pported by
its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment
assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that SSMH Foundations must hold in perpetuity or
for a donor-specified period(s) as well as board-designated funds. The policy allows the endowment
assets to be invested in a manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield
results of the allocation index while assuming a moderate leve! of investment risk. SSMH expects its
endowment funds to provide a rate of return that preserves the gift and generates earnings o achieve
the endowment purpose.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives—To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, SSMH
relies on a total return sirategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital
appreciation {realized and unrealized} and interest and dividend income. SSMH uses a diversified asset
allocation to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints to preserve capital.

Spending Policy and Investment Objectives—SSMH Foundations have a practice of distributing the
major portion of current-year earnings on the endowment funds, if the restrictions have been met.
Some of the donor-restricted endowments require a portion of the earnings to increase the corpus of
the endowment. This is consistent with the organization’s objective to maintain the purchasing power
of the endowment assets held in perpetuity as well as to provide additional real growth through new
gifts and investment return,

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

SSMH utilizes various interest rate swap contracts to manage interest cost and debt duration. None of
these swaps have been designated as hedges of the interest payments on outstanding debt obligations
for accounting purposes.

At December 31, 2023, SSMH had seven floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps, two fixed-to-floating
interest rate swaps, four fixed spread basis swaps and two total return swaps. At December 31, 2022,
SSMH had six floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps while the other swap types were the same as 2023,

Under all the outstanding floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps with the exception of two, SSMH
receives LIBOR or a percentage of LIBOR plus a spread of 0.12% and pays a fixed rate. LIBOR was
officially removed as an official index on June 20, 2023, at which time SSMH's counterparties converted
to utilizing a one-month lookback rate for existing LIBOR-based swaps. Under the remaining floating-to-
fixed interest rate swaps, SSMH recelves a portion of SOFR and pays a fixed rate, Under the fixed-to-
floating interest rate swaps, SSMH receives a fixed rate and pays Securities Industry and Financial
Markets Association Municipal Swap Index (SIFMA). Under the fixed spread basis swaps, SSMH pays a
rate based on SIFMA and receives a percentage of LIBOR plus a spread ranging from 0.40% and 0.62%.
Under the total return swaps, SSMH pays both a fixed rate equal to the coupon interest rate on the
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underlying bond or direct placement loan, as well as a variable rate based on SIFMA plus a spread, then
receives the same fixed rate equal to the coupon interest rate on the underlying bond or direct
placement loan. Counterparties to SSMH’s swaps are diversified and include JP Morgan, Citibank, Wells
Fargo, BNY Mellon, Barclays, RBC, and PNC Bank.

Certain swap agreements require SSMH to provide collateral if SSMH's liability, determined on a mark-
to-market basis, exceeds a specified threshoid. SSMH's interest rate swap agreements allow for net
settlements of payment in the normal course of business as well as offsetting of all contracts with a
given counterparty in the event of default or bankruptcy of one of the two parties of the transaction. As
of December 31, 2023 and 2022, SSMH had posted $0 in collateral for the benefit of the counterparties.

As part of CIP, SSMH holds investments in interest rate swaps and options, credit default swaps and
futures. This economic hedging is based on investment portfolio exposure to long-only equities, foreign
exchange and fixed income. No leverage Is utilized for this hedging activity.

The following table shows the cutstanding notional amount of derivative instruments measured at fair
value as reported in other liabllities and assets whose use is limited in the consolidated balance sheets
as of December 31, 2023 and 2022:

Maturity Notional
Recorded on Date of Fixed Amount Fair

pecember 31, 2023 Balance Sheet Derivatives Rate Outstanding Value
Derivatives not designated as

hedges—interestrate swaps Other assets 2028-2053 2.17%-3.17% $1,111,400 $ 30,820
Derivatives not designated as

hedges—interestrate swaps Otherliabllities 2034-2045 475,150 (14,041)
Derivatives not designated as Assets fimited as to

hedges—trading derivatives: use orrestricted

Futures 2024 1,511 1,121

Options 2024 679,186 (1,751)

620,697 {630)

Total §2,267,247 5 16,149

- A6 -
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December 31, 2022

Derivatives not designated as
hedges—interestrate swaps

Derivatives not designated as
hedges—interestrate swaps

Derivatives not designated as
hedges—trading derivatives:
Credit default swaps
Futures
Interest rate swaps
Optiens

Total

Eair value is based on instruments trading in active markets (Level 1) and significant other ohservable
inputs (Level 2) at December 31, 2023 and 2022. The gains and losses related to trading derlvative
instruments have been included in the disclosures reported in Note 7—Assets Limited as to Use or

Restricted.

SSMIH's credit derivative instruments are under a master agreement that provides the abllity to close
out and net the total exposure to a counterparty in the event of a default or other termination events.
Counterparty risk is managed by requiring high credit standards for SSMH’s counterparties as well as
collateral posting requirements. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, SSMH posted $632,054 and
$316,552, respectively, of collateral for the credit and equity trading derivative instruments allocated to

SSiviH from CIP,

Recorded on
Balance Sheet

Otherliabilities

Other assetls

Assets limited as to
use of restricted

-47-
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Derivatives Rate

2023-2044 2.17%-3.00%

2035-2G50

2023226
2023

2023-2030 1.00%-2.00%
2023



jjorda0
Typewritten text
85


The net presentation of SSMH's financial instruments subject to rights of offset are summarized as

follows:

Offsetting of Financial and
Derivative Assets

Description

As of December 31, 2023—
Asset derivatives:
Interest rate swaps

Trading derivatives:
Futures
Options

As of December 31, 2022—
Asset derivatives:
Interest rate swaps

Trading derivatives:
Credit defaultswap
Futures
Interestrate swaps
Gptions

Gross Gross Amounts Net Amounts
Amounts of  Offset in the Presented in the
Recognized  Consalidated Consalidated

Assets Balance Sheets Balance Sheets

430,820 $ - $ 30,820
$ 1121 $ - s 1,121
$ 1,121 S - 5 1,121
$ 16,009 S - 5 16,009
$ 19 $ (25 $ {6)
8,618 - 8,618
1,451 (1,747) (295)
2,669 {4,782) {2,113)
412,757 $16,554) $ 6,203

-48 -

Gross Amounts
not Offset in the
Consolidated
Balance Sheets

$(14,041)

Net
Amount

$ 16,779

5 L1721

S 1,121
e

3 16,009

$ {6)
8,618
{296)
(2,113)

4 6,203
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Offsetting of Financial and
Derivative Liabilities

Gross Gross Amounts Net Amounts Gross Amouhts
Amounts of Offset in the Presented in the not Offset in the
Recognized Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Net
Description Liabilities Balance Sheets Balance Sheets Balance Sheets Amount
As of December 31, 2023—
Assat derivatives—
Trading derivatives:
Futures S - 3 - - $ - -
Options {1,751) - (1,751} - {4,751)
$ {1,751 3 - 5 {1,751} 5 - $ {1,751)
Liabitity derivatives —interest
rate swaps $ 14,041 ) - § 14,041 5 - 5 14,041
——————""1 —
As of December 31, 2022—
Assetderivatives—
Trading derivatives:
Credit default swap s 25 $ {25) ) - 5 - § -
Futures - - - - -
Interest rate swaps 1,747 {1,747} - - -
Options 4,782 (4,782) - - -
$ 6,554 $  {6,554) $ - $ - § -
Llability derivatives —interest
rate swaps $ 24,876 S - S 24,876 ${16,008) S 8,867

19, INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense included in other-net nonoperating gains and (losses) on the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022, are as follows:

2023 2022

Current tax expense:
Federal S 792 S 1,618
State 453 4,171
Income tax expense 51,245 55,789

-49-
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The components of deferred taxes are as follows:

2023 2022
Assets:
Net operating loss and credit carryforwards S 249,256 $ 471,607
Accrued employee compensation 6,725 5,817
Other nondeductible liabilities 42,518 6,340
Uncollectible accounts 1,304 4
Other 2,273 {2,467)
Total assets 302,076 481,301
Liabilities:
Depreciable and amortizable assets (48,784) (33,221)
Investment in subsidiaries {(22,409) (8,887)
Other (3,525) (422)
Total liabilities (74,718) (42,530)
Valuation allowance {227,358) (438,771)

Net deferred income tax assets

5 -

S -

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the deferred income tax benefits were recorded net of a valuation
allowance of $227,358 and $438,771, respectively, primarily due to net operating loss carryforwards
available related to its for-profit subsidiaries, which expire hetween 2021 and 2037, A valuation
allowance was provided because it is more likely than not that the net operating losses will expire
unutilized. During the year ended December 31, 2023, S5SMH decreased the valuation allowance by
$211,412 based on 2023 net incomes. During the year ended December 31, 2022, SSMH increased the
valuation allowance by $72,722 based on 2022 net losses.

The provision for federal income taxes incurred is different from that which would be obtained by
applying the statutory federal income tax rate of 21% to net income before taxes, The significant items
causing this difference are the net income of tax-exempt subsidiaries, changes in vaiuation allowances
on deferred tax assets, and nondeductible compensation.

SSMH files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and in various state jurisdictions. SSMH is

no longer subject to U.S, or state Income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2017.

Cash Paid for Income Taxes—Cash paid for income taxes totaled $4,016 and $7,931 for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

50~
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20. FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

21.

SSMH provides general health care services to residents within its geographic locations. Expenses by
functional classification for the year ended December 31, 2023, are as follows:

Health Care General/ Pharmacy
Services  Administrative Benefit Mgmt Total
Salaries and benefits $3,523,068  § 770,000 S 192,585 $ 4,485,653
Medical claims 624,843 - - 624,843
Supplies 1,663,771 7,207 - 1,670,978
PBM Supplies - - 1,464,877 1,464,877
Professional fees and other 1,327,390 539,015 80,250 1,946,655
Interest 1,697 86,862 (7,889) 80,670
Depreciation and amortization 191,067 88,089 9,793 288,949
Impairment losses 33,096 - - 33,096

£7,364,932 $1,491,173 $1,739,616 $10,595,721

Expenses by functional classification for the year ended December 31, 2022, are as follows:

Health Care General/ Pharmacy
Services  Administrative  Benefit Mgmt Total
Salaries and benefits £3,203,375 S 737,546 $ 140,502 $ 4,081,423
Medical ciatims 520,249 - - 520,249
Suppiies 1,460,532 5,266 - 1,465,798
PBM Supplies - - 1,222,826 1,222,826
Professional fees and other 1,328,999 475,863 72,042 1,876,904
Interest 1,545 77,854 885 80,284
Depreciation and amortization 207,276 91,572 9,793 308,641

$6,721,976 $1,388,101 51,446,048 5 9,556,125

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis
that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include human resources, finance,
treasury, legai, technology services and other functions. These expenses are allocated to healthcare
services and general and administrative services based on the functional department for which they are
incurred. Departmental expenses may include allocations of costs hased on direct assignment,
expenses or other methods.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

SSMH has outstanding letters of credit of $24,415 and $20,873 at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. There were no outstanding draws on these letters of credit.

As of December 31, 2023, SSMH has entered construction projects for new facilities and capital
improvements to existing facilities. As of December 31, 2023, SSMH has unmet commitiments of
approximately $140,674, which will be fina nced with board-designated assets, project funds, or cash
generated from operations. As part of acquisition agreements in Wisconsin, SSMH has an outstanding
commitment of approximately $50,000 for strategic and routine capital to be paid through 2028,

-51-
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22.

SSMH has entered certain other guarantees with outside entities to be paid out from 2023 through
2024, which totaled $15,390 at December 31, 2023,

During a periodic cost report audit performed by the Medicare Administrative Contractor (MAC) in
Oklahoma, the MAC identified potential issues with the calculation of the disproportionate share
hospital (DSH) payments paid to SSMH’s Okiahoma facility (the Hospita!). in 2013, the CMS rendered a
ruling for full repayment of the DSH payments attributable to the adolescent psychiatric program for
the year ended December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, $28,300 and $28,300,
respectively, was included in estimated third-party payor settlements payables other on the
consolidated balance sheets refated to this ruling. SSMH appealed to the Provider Relmbursement
Review Board (PRRB). In January 2018, PRRB ruled in favor of the Hospital for the 2006 DSH settlement,
which was remanded back to the PRRB for further review, In 2022, the final PRRB determination was
not ruled in favor of the Hospital. SSMH is continuing the litigation process.

See Notes 8—Fair Value Measurements, 13—Debt and Finance Lease Obligations, and 16—Leases for
additional information regarding commitments.

Outside of the matters described above, SSMH Is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations
arising in the normal course of business. After consultation with legal counsel, it is management’s
opinion that these matters will be resolved without a material adverse effect on SSMH’s consolidated
financial position or consolidated resuits of operations.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIQUIDITY RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2023, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general
expenditure, such as operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt and capital
expenditures not financed with debt were as follows:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 640,816
Investments 20,479
Patient accounts receivable 934,411
pharmacy claims and rebates receivable 1,196,998
Other receivables 125,745
Assets limited as to use 3,153,904

Total financial assets 6,072,353

Liguidity resources:

Unused commercial paper 225,000
Unused line of credit 802,590

Total financial assets and liquidity resources available within
one year S 7,069,943

SSMH considers board designated assets limited as to use to be availabie within one year for general
expenditure except for those assets designated for pharmacy benefit claims, long-term employee
benefit plans and board designated endowments.

SSMH utilizes an internally managed investment fund to meet cash needs for general expenditures of
the organization. On a daily basis, either (i} excess funds generated from SSMH's operations are
transferred to the internally managed investment fund, or (1) liquidity needs for general expenditures

-5 .
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23.

are sourced from the investment fund. The level of cash kept in the fund is based on management’s
determination of future working capital needs, debt service requirements, fixed capital needs, and
other cash outflows of the organization.

On a guarterly basis, SSMH calculates the amount of its cash and investments that are available within
certain time frames. As of December 31, 2023, the majority of SSMH’s cash and short-term investments
was available in three days or less. Of the remainder availability to receive proceeds ranges from one
month or less to a year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, SSMH has evaluated subsequent events for potentiai
recognition and disclosure through March 20, 2024, the date the financial statements were issued,
noting no such events occurred.

d % H K ok K
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Ceriificate of Need Program

- SERVICE-SPECIFIC REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Project Title:

SSM Health St. Mary's - St. Louis CG4 Project #: 6179 HT
Historical Financial Data for Latest Three Full Years plus

Projections Through Three Full Years Beyond Project Completion

Use an individual form for each affected service with a Year

sufflelen I3 F 1 d,

T T some e emroriate Haniay < re perte 2025 2026 2027
Amount of Utilization:* [ 2,158] | 2001 | 2,245 |
Revenue:

Average Charge** 350,413 $51,547 $52,707
Gross Revenue $108,791,254 $113.454,947 $118,327,215
Revenue Deductions 80,292,706 83,734,844 87.330,500
Operaling Revenue 28.498.548 29,720,103 36,996,715
Other Revenue 0 0 0
TOTAL REVENUE $28,498,548 $29,720,103 $30,996,715
Expenses:
Direct Expenses
Salaries 11,161,372 11,839,123 12,558,830
Fees 0 0 0
Supplies 9,095,655 9,647,969 10,234,475
Qther 5,228,992 5,546,511 5,883,687
TOTAL DIRECT $25,486,019 $27,033,603 $28,676,992
Indirect Expenses
Depreciation 348,562 348,562 348,562
Interest** 0 0 0
Rent/Lease 0 0 0
Overhead**** 6,062,378 6,430,503 6,821,417
TOTAL INDIRECT $6,410,940 $6,779,065 $7.169,979
TOTAL EXPENSES $31,896,959 $33,812,668 $35,846,971
NET INCOME (LOSS): -$3,398,411 -$4,092,565 -$4,850,256

*Utilization will be measured in “patient days” for licensed beds, “procedures” for equipment,
or other appropriate units of measure specific to the service affected.

**Indicate how the average charge/procedure was calculated,
***Only on long term debt, not construction.

¥ ndicate how overhead was calculated.

MG 580-1865 (08/06}
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